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He revealed Iron, wherein Is mighty power
and (many) uses for mankind.
“Quran 57:25"

WHO WE ARE

State of the art Cold
Rolling Complex based
on latest Japanese and

Austrian technology,

backed by premier
Pakistani & Japanese
conglomerates.
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VISION

To be a world class manufacturer of Cold Rolled Steel.

MISSION

To become an efficient producer of Cold Rolled Steel
while serving interests of all stakeholders.




“THE FINEST STEEL HAS TO GO THROUGH THE HOTTEST FIRE”
-Richard Nixon

AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




CORPORATE STRATEGY

Our corporate strategy entalls producing the highest
quality of praducts benefitting all stakeholders. The
Compary emphasizes on transparency, bullding
greater standards for ethical values,

ASML focuses on [ts team and belleves In regular
tralning and development of Its human resource
given the technologically advanced nature of ASMLs
plant and machinery.

There Is a strong commitment for continuous
Improvement of each process In order to optimize
efficlency.

We strongly adhere to the following to be In line with
the global best practices:

= Value creation for all stakeholders while
maintalning a strong competitive position;
Keep a strong focus on the long run
sustalnable advantages;
Develop and strengthen a transparent and
Inventive cufture while encouraging ethical
values;
Ensuring that corporate strategy passes
throughout the organization and Is Inculcated
across the Company;
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CORE VALUES

Our People

We are an equal opportunity employer.
Discrimination on any grounds Is
fundamentally unacceptable.

Regulatory Compliance & Corporate
Governance

The Company remalns committed to
high standards of corporate
governance, while adhering to the
applicable laws and regulations.

Health, Safety & Emvironment

The Company strongly endorses and
emphasizes on managing resources
ensuring safety within and beyond Its
own facllitdes.

ASML stands committed to carry out
its buslness In a sustalnable manner
to promote preservation of the
environment.

integrity

Key success for any business fosters
In & transparent environment based
on ethical values.

Our values are based on highest
Integrity, which determines the way we
work, leading to our well-founded
reputation.

Bxcellence & Efficlency

Efficlencles, appropriate risk manage-
ment measures and pricing strategles
should enable profitable operations
and good shareholder retums In all
market scenarlos.

At ASML, our conviction for excellence
emerges with a passion to provide our
customers with CRC comparable with

International standards.
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Being a highly responsible
corporate, Aisha Steel Mill Ltd.
expects its employees to uphold
and enhance the reputation of the
Company by:

= Maintaining an
unimpeachable standard of
integrity in all their business
relationships both inside and
outside the Company.

= Fostering the highest
standard of conduct and
competence amongst those
for whom they are
responsible.

=  Ensuring transparency in
business transactions, and
rejecting any business
practice, which might be
deemed to be improper.

= Promoting fair business
practices and ensuring
compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

In applying these rules, employees
should use the following
guidelines:

1. Conflict of Interest

=  Any personal interest, which
may effect or might
reasonably be deemed by
others to affect an employee’s
impartiality, should be
declared up front in writing.

= The Company property must
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CODE OF CONDUCT

hot be used for personal work
unless specific permission is
obtained.

= Each staff memberis
emploved in the Company on
a full time basis and
therefore, they should not be
involved, directly or indirectly,
in any vocation, business or
commercial activity. Any
departure from this can only
be made with the written
permission of the Chief
Executive Officer.

2. Confidentallty and Accuracy
of Information

The confidentiality of information
received in the course of business
must be respected and never be
used for personal gain;
information given in the course of
business must be honest and
never designed to mislead.
Further, all Company affairs are to
be treated as confidential and
should not be discussed with third
parties not only during service with
the Company, but even after
departing from service. Interaction
with compstitors beyond the
approved level will be regarded as
gross misconduct.

3. Giits

All members are forbidden to
accept gifts or bormmow money from

another member of the Company
or from Showroom Dealers,
Vendors or a customer of ASML.

4. Proper Recording of Funds,

Assels, Recelpts and
Dishursements

i. Al funds, assets, receipts and
disbursements should be
properly recorded in the
books of the Company. In
particular, no funds or
accounts should be
established or maintained for
purposes that are not fully
and accurately reflected in
the books and records of the
Company.

ii. In principle, all resources and
supplies- telephone, printers,
intemet, office van, stationery,
other supplies, and most
importantly your office time
etc. are for official use.

5. Health & Safety

Every staff member should take
reasonable care to ensure the
heatlth and safety of himself /
herself and others who may be
affected by his / her acts at work.



8. Environment

To preserve and protect the environment , all staff members
should:

Design and operate the Company’s facilities and
processes so as to ensure the trust of adjoining
communities.

Promote conservation of resources and waste
minimization.

Strive continuously to improve environment awareness

and protection,
Help assist in ensuring minimum wastage of resources,

7. Work Place Harassment

The staff will maintain an environment that is free from
harassment and in which all employees are equally
respected.

8. Lsgal Proceadings

It is essential that a staff member, who becomses involved in
legal proceedings, whether civil or criminal, should
immediately inform his superior with a copy to the CEO in
writing.
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SIMPLIFYING LIFESTYLE

CRC UTILIZATION
- WHITE PRODUCTS
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COMPANY PROFILE /

Aisha Steel Mills Limited (ASML) is a state of the art - Arif Habib Group, one of the largest conglomerates

cold rolling complex with a nameplate capacity of in Pakistan;

220,000 metric tons per year. ASML is one of the - Metal One Corporation, majority owned subsidiary

largest private sector investments in the value added of Mitsubishi Group, Japan

flat-rolled steel industry in Pakistan. - Universal Metal Group, Japan

ltis the only Cold Rolled Coil ({CRC) manufacturer in ASML was incorporated in 2005, and is set to become

the country which is using brand new Japanese and the largest supplier of cold rolled steel coils in the

Austrian machinery for all of its main processes, country. ASML has also entered into a strategic tie-up

ensuring best quality production of CRC in the country. with Mitsubishi Corporation to assist in and ensure
seamless marketing, sales, and distribution of its

ASML is a business venture between premier products.

Pakistani and Japanese business groups namely:

HISTORY
Completion Listing
Incorporated of Erection - February on KSE - August
May 2005 2012 2012 Commerclal
Operations Date -
Commencement of Commencement Retgher 4012
Erection of rial run - June
2012
PRODUCT:
ASML produces Cold Rolled Coils (CRC) of ASML is the only CRC plant in Pakistan with an
intemational standards from imported Hot Rolled Electrolytic Cleaning Line (“ECL") which substantially
Coils {HRC). improves the product quality, removing all impurities
making ASML one of the most valuable CRC
The CRC products will be offered to the industrial, producers meeting the highest quality standards.

engineering and manufacturing industry as a
premium raw material for transformeation into any
number of value-added products for the domestic and
export markets.
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COMPANY INFORMATION
Board of Directors

Mr. Mikio Kinoshita Chairman
Mr. Arif Habib

Mr. Hasib Rehman

Mr. Yoshikazu Uda

Mr. Kashif Habib

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz

Mr. Ali Akhtar Khan

Mr. Kashif Shah Chief BExecutive Officer
Audit Commitbee

Mr. Kashif Habib Chairman

Mr. Mildo Kinoshita  Member

Mr. Hasib Rehman  Member

Mr. Muhammad Ejaz  Member

Registered Office Address:
Arif Habib Centre, 23 - MT Khan Road, Karachi — Pakistan
webslte : www.alshasteel.com

Plant Adcdress:

DSU - 45, Paklstan Steel

Down Stream Industrial Estate
Bin Qasim, Karachi, Pakistan

10

Awditors

AF. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants
State Life Building No:1-C

1.1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi

Share Regisirar

Central Depository Company of Pakistan

CDC House, 99-B, SMCHS Shahrae Faisal, Karachi
Phone: 92-21-111-111-500

Bankers & Financing Inatitutions
Askari Bank Ltd

Bank Alfalah Ltd

Bank Al Habib Ltd

Faysal Bank Ltd

Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd

KASB Bank Ktd

MCB Bank Ltd

National Bank of Pakistan

NIB Bank Ltd

Pak China Investment Company Ltd
Saudl Pak Industrial & Agricultural
Investment Company Pvt Ltd.
Silk Bank Ltd

Sindh Bank Ltd
Summit Bank Lid
The Bank of Khyber
The Bank of Punjab




COMPANY ORGANOGRAM

12 AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of ASML in their individual capacity bring with them extensive experience and expertise. The

Board comprises of the following individuals:

.l|||"

MR. MIKIO KINOSHITA
Chairman & Non - Executive Director

Mr. Kinoshita has over 38 years of
relevant experience. He has been
with Metal One Corporation since
2003, and has held various
executive positions. Prior to joining
Metal One, Mr. Kinoshita was
associated with Nishho wai
Corporation, where his last
asslgnment was as Managing
Director. He is a graduats from the
Keic Gijyulu University, Japan.

MR. ARIF HABIB
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Arif Habib is the Chairman & Chief
Executive of Arif Hablb Corporation
Limited. He Is alsa the Chalrman of
Pakarab Fertilizers Limited, Fatima
Fertilizer Company Limited, Javedan
Corporation Limited and Memon Health
and Education Foundation.

Mr. Arlf Hablb has remalned the slected
President/Chairman of Karachi Stock
Exchange six imes in the past. He is the
Founding Member and Former Chairman
of the Central Depository Compary of
Pakistan Limlied. He has served as a
Member of the Privatization Commisslon,
Board of Investment, Tariff Reforms
Commission and Securities & Exchange
Ondinance Review Committee. Over the
years he haz been nomingted on the
Board of Directors of a number of
companies by the Government of
Pakistan. Presently he is a director of Sui
Northem Gas Pipelines Company Limited.

Otier Corponate Engagement

As Chalrman

Arif Hablb Foundation

Paklstan Private Equlty Management Lid

Arff Hablb DMOCC

Safembx Concrete Producs Ld

Real Estate Modaraba Management Compary Ltd
Thatta Cement Company L1d

As Diroctor

Pakistan Englnearing Companny Lbd
Paklstan Centre for Philanthropy
Imemational Complax Projects Ltd
Sul Northem Gas Pipelines Ld

As Honorary Trusbes / Director
Fatimld Foundation

Karachl Education inftiative

Pakistan Veterans Crickst Assoclation
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MR. HASIB REHMAN
Nan - Exegutive Director

Mr.Hasib Rehman is the President /
CEO of Universal Metal Corporation
Japan. His experience In the steel
industry spans a period over 20
years both in the local as well as the
imemational arena. Mr. Rehman is
a director of Japan—Pakistan
Associgtion and a member of
Japan-Pakistan business
co-operation. He is also a member
of Tokyo Chamber of Commerce
and Industry.

Other Corporate Engagement

A= Director
UM Pakistan (Pvi) Lid
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MR.YOSHIKAZU UDA,
Executive Director

Mr. Lida has over 35 years of
experience in steel trading and project
management. He holds the position of
Executive Director at ASML He is also
part of the Global Marketing
Department of Metal One Corporation,
Japan; and his last assignment,
outside lapan was as Vice President
of Metal One Asia, Singapore. He has
also served as Head of Steel
Department of Nissho lwal
Corporation, Pakistan from 1986 to
1990, and is well versed with the local
smvironment. Mr. Uda graduated from
the faculty of Economics of Keio
Gijyulu University, Japan.




MR. KASHIF HABIB
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Kashif Hablb Is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP). He has completed
his Articleship from A.F. Ferguson &
Co. {a member firm of Price
Waterhouse Coopers), where he
galned experlence of a diverse set of
cllents spanning the Financlal,
Manufacturing and Services sectors.
He has at his credit experience of
three years Intemship in Arif Habib
Corporation Limited and three years'
experence of Executive Director In
cement and fertillzer companles of
the group.

Presently Mr. Kashif Habib is
Executive Director at Pak Arab
Fertilizers Limited and Chief
Executive of AFAbbas Cement
Industries Limited.

Other Corponste Engagement

As Director

Fatima Fertliizers Company Limibted

Jevedan Comaratkn Limited

Arf Hablb REIT Managament Limited

Retocast Englneering Comgary (PvL) Limited
Memon Health and Education Foundation

AT Habi Foundation

Arf Hablb Resal Estate Services {Pvt.} Limited
Real Estate Modaraba Management Co. Limited

MR. MUHAMMAD EJAZ
Non - Bxecutive Director

Mr. Ejaz is a certified Financial
Risk Manager and holds an MBA
from the Institute of Business
Administration, Karachi. He has
over 15 years of experience In the
flelds of Tregsury, Corporate
Finance and Investment Banking,
Mr. Ejaz has served in senior
positions at leading local and
international banks including
Faysal Bank, Union Bank and
Emirates Bank International. His
key accreditation includes a
numbesr of successful large-tickat
syndication transactions. He is
also a regular visiting faculty
member at IBA, Karachl and
NIBAF, Islamabad.

Other Corporats Engagement

As Chief Executive
Anif Habib REIT Management Lid

As Director

Arif Habib Corporation Lid

Arif Habib REIT Management Lid

Sachal Energy Development (Pvi) Lid
Jevedan Corporation Lid

Arif Habib Real Estate Services (Pvi) Lid
Al Abbas Cement Industries Lid
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MR. ALl AKHTAR KHAN
Independerit &
Non - Executive Director

Mr. Ali Alkhtar Khan holds over 35
years of experience in the Iron and
Stesl| Industry, including 26 years at
Pakistan Steel Mills where his last
asslgnment was as GM Operations.
He Iz currently assoclated with
Tuwairgi Steel Mills Limited as
Advisor Business Development.
During his tenure in the steel sector,
Mr. Khan has attended workshops in
several countries Including Austria,
Sweden, Russla, Germany and USA
ghving him exposure of the global
steel sector. Mr. Khan is also a part
time professor at Dawood College of
Engineering and Technology.He has a
Master's degree In Economies and
Finance from University of Karachl,
along with Bachelors in Metallurgy.
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MR. KASHIF SHAH
Chief BExecutive Officer

Mr. Shah is a seasoned
professional with a successful
track record of working with top
tler Industrial and financlal
institutions in Pakistan. He was
appointed Chief Executive of ASML
in August 2011. Prior to that he
was responsible to protect and
further the Interests of Byco
Group's majortty shareholders In
the capacity of Sponsors’ Advisar.
Mr. Shah has been associated with
Habib Bank Limited and United
Bank Limited as Head of
Investment Banking between
2001 and 2009. Before that, Mr.
Shah was associated with JP
Morgan based in Hong Kong
looking after Mergers and
Acquisitions for a number of South
Aslan countries. Mr. Shah holds an
MEBA from Lahore Unlversity of
Management Sciences.

Otier Corponate Engagement

As Diractor
Arif Hablb Corporstlon Ltd




MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MIRZA TARIO BEQQ
Chief Operating Officer

Mr.Begtg has done his Bachelor of
Engineering in Metallurgy in 1969
from Dawood College of
Englneering and Technology
Karachi, and possesses over 40
years of experience in the Iron and
Steel Sector with Pakistan Steel.
As a stee] technologist, Mr.Begg
has acquired extensive experience
In varlous aspects of steel making
and maintenance in plant and
machinery.

TAHIR IQBAL
Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary

Mr. Igbal is an Associate Member
of ICMAP, having nine vears of
experience In finance, accounting,
taxation, corporate affairs, risk
management, audit/assurance
coupled with general
management experience. Prior to
Joining ASML, he was working as
the CFO & Company Secretary of
Arif Habib Corporation Ltd for six
years. He also serves on the
boards of Real Estate Modaraba
Management Company Ltd and
S.K.M Lanka HoldIngs (PvL) Lid
(Arif Hablb Group Company
incorporated in Sri Lanka).
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BOARD AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Based on the listing requiremenis and to ensure good
corporate  governance for our stakeholders, various
committees have been formed at both the Board and
Management level. Majority members of the Board are
norn-executive directors.

Board Commitiees

Board Audlt Commitiee

The audit committee remains respensible for recommending
to the Beard of Directors the appoiniment of exemal
auditors by the Company's shareholders and considers any
questions of resignation or removal of external auditors,
audit fees and provision by external auditors of any service to
the Company in addition to audit its financial statements.

Mr. Kaghif Hablb - Chalrman
Mr. Miklo Kingshita - Member
Mr. Haalb Rehman - Member
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz- Member

In the absence of strong grounds to proceed otherwise, the

Board of Direcltors acts in accordance with the

recommendations of the Audit Committee in the following

matters:

i To determine appropriate measures o safeguard
Company assets;

i. Review of preliminary announcements of results prior
to publication;

iii. Review of financial statements ( quarterly, half yearly
and yearly ) prior to the approval by the Board of
Directors with major emphasis on :

a. Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

b. Major judgment areas;

¢. Going concem assumption;

d. Anychange in accounting policies and practices;

e. Compliance with applicable accounting standards, and

f.  Compliance with listing regulations and cther statutory
and regulatory requirements;
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iv. Facilitating the extermal audit and discussion with
external auditors of major observations arising from the
interim and final audits and any matter that the
auditors may wish to highlight { in the absence of
Management , where necessary);

v. Review of Management Letier issued by extemnal
auditors letter and management’s response thereto;

vi. Ensuring coondingtion between the intemal and
external auditors of the Company;

vii. Review of the scope and extent of the internal audit and
ensuring that the imternal audit function has adequate
resources and is appropriately placed within the
Company,

viii. Consideration of major findings of intemal
investigations and Management’s response thereto;

ix. Ascertaining that the intemmal control system including
financial and operational controls, accounting system
and reporting structure are adequate and effective;

x Instituting special projects value for money studies or
other investigations or any matier specified by the
Board of Directors in consultation with the CEQ and to
consider remittance of any matter to the extemal
auditors or to any external body;

xi. Determination of compliance with the relevant
statutory requirements;

xii. Monitoring compliance with the best practice of
corporate governance and identification of significant
viclations thereof;

xiii. Consideration of any other issue of matier as may be
assigned by the Board of Directors;

Board Human Resource & Remuneration(HR&R)
Commiiss

The role of the HR&R committee is to assist the directors in
its oversight of the evaluation and approval of the employee
benefit plans, welfare projects and retirement involvement.

The committee will recommend any adjustments which are
fair and required to attract/retain high caliber staff for
consideration and approval. The committee has the following
responsibilities, powers, authorities and discretion:




Mr. Artf Hablb - Chalmman

Conduct periodic reviews of the good performance
awards, bonuses, long term service award policy and
safety awards for safe plant operations.

Conduct periodic reviews of amount and forms of
reimbursement for terminal benefits in case of
retirement and death of any employee in relation to
current norms.

Mr. Yoshlkazu Uds - Member 9 il -
Mr. Haslb Rehman - Member 1 1 Alternate
Director
Mr Liaquat All
atiended the
Meeting
Mr. Muharmmad Ejaz - Member 1 1

Consider any changes to the company’s retirement
benefit plang including gratuity  pension,
post-retirement medical freatment, based on actuarial
report, assumptions and funding recommendations.

Review organizational policies conceming
housing/welfare  schemes, scholarships and
incentives for outstanding performance.

Ensure in consultation with the CEQ that succession
plans are in place and review such plans at regular
intervals for those executives whose appointment
requires board approval (under code of corporate
governance), hamely the CFO, the Company Secretary
and the Head of Intemal Audit including the terms of
appointment and remuneration package in
accordance with the market positioning.

vi. Review and recommend compensation/benefits for
the Chief Executive Officer.

The committee meets on as required basis or when directed
by the board of directors. The secretary sets the agenda,
time, date and venue of the meeting in consuliation with the
chairman of the commitiee. The Head HR acts as secretary
of the committee and submit its minutes of the meeting duly
signed by the chairman.These minutes are then circulated
1o the Board of Directors.

Board Executive Commitiee

This Commitiee consists of four members of the Board and
meels at the start of every financial year to formulate and
approve the yearly budget and envisaged yearly plans for the
Company.

Mr_ Arif Habib - Chalrman
Mr. Haslb Rehman - Member

D|rectnr
Mr Liaquat Ali
attendad the
Mesting
Mr. Yoshikezu Uda - Member ik it -
Mr. Muhammax Ejaz - Member 1 1

The Committee also evaluates and discusses feasibilities for
project diversifications and any expansion plans to be
conducted. The Commitlee is also responsible for
developing any strategic goals to be implemented.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES
Management Executive Commities (MANCOM)

Mr. Kashif Shah - Chairman

Mr. Tariq Begg - Member

Mr. Tahir Igbal - Member

Ms. Hina Akhtar - Member

Mr. Shafique Ahmed - Member
Mr. Waseem Saeed - Member
Mr. Shaikh Nazeer - Member
Ms. Mehreen Aamir - Member

Commities

Members

Mancom conducts its business under the guidance of
the CEQ. The Commitiee is represented by the heads of
all the department of the Company. MANCOM meetings
are held bimonthly 1o discuss and review the ongoing
business operations.

Committee formed: December 2011
No of meetings held till Year end 14:

The Committee is responsible for the formulation of the
business strategy based on the corporate objectives of
the Company as set by the Board of Directors. The terms
of reference of the commitiee are as follows

*  To develop and approve medium term plan (s) to
meet the interim objectives and milestones in
accordance with the long term plan as approved by
the Board;

* Update regarding the progress of the various
segments of the Company;

*  Discuss new ideas regarding business/ product
lines , new markets / refer opportunities and
feasibility for onward submission to the Board;

s |Identify any potential risk factors and manage
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them accordingly;

* Timely decision making with regard to business
and employee related issues;

*+ Review the adequacy of
administration and financial control;

+ To improve performance and efficiency of the
Company;

operational,

Management HR Commiitee

Mr. Kashif Shah - Chairman
Mr. Tariq Begg - Member
Mr. Tahir Igbal - Member
Ms. Hina Akhtar - Member

The objective of management HR committee is to review,
menitor and make recommendations to the Board
through the Board Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee for the following:

Committee formed: December 2011
No of meetings held till Year end: 2

+«  FEffective Employee Development Program;

+  Sound Compensation and benefits plans, policies
and practices designed to attract and retain the
caliber of personnel reguired t0 manage the
business effectively.

+« Review organization structure to evaluate and
recommend changes in the various functions for
effective management of the business operations;

«  Establish plans and procedures that provide an
effective basis for management basis over
Company manpower;

+« Determine appropriate limits of authority and
approval procedures for delegating authority to
Tacilitate decision making at various management,
levels;




SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

and Corporate Office

it Habib Centre
23, M.T. Khan Road
Karaht-74000
Tel: (021)32470217, 34740160 Fax No:
021)34740151

ail: info@aishasteel.com

Webslte: www.alshasteel.com

Share Registrar Office

Central Depository Company of Pakistan

Share Registrar Department

CDC House, 99B, BlockB, SM.CHS, Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi

Tel: (021) 111111500 Toll Free:0800-23275

Fax: {021)34326053

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com

Email: i cpak.com

Listing on Stock Exchanges
ASMLL equity shares are listed on the Karachi Stock
Exchange (KSE) of Pakistan.

Stock Code
The stock code for dealing in enlus shares of the
Company at the stock exchanges is

investor Service Centre

ASML share department is operated by Central
Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) R r
Services. It also functions as an Investor Service Centre
and has been servicing nearly 9,000 shareholders. The
Investor  Service nire is manage a
wellexperienced team of professionals and is equipped
with the necessary infrastructure in terms of computer
facliies and comprehensive set of systems and
lla_roceQWes for conducting the Re(fistration function.
eam is headed by Mr. Abdus Samad at Re, r Office
and Company Secretary at ASML Registered Office.

For assistance, shareholders may contact either the
Registered Office cor the Share Re, r Office.

Contact Persons:

Mr. Zain Hgﬂgi
Tel: (D21) 34740160 -7
Emall: zaln.haqql@alshasteel.com

Mr. Mohsin Rajab Ali
Tel: (021) 111-111-500
Emall: mohsin_rajaball@cdcpak.com

Compllance

During the year the Company has complied with all
applicable provisions, flled all retums/forms and
fumished all the relevant information as required under
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and allied laws and
rules, the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the Listing
Regulations, wherever applicable.

Book Closure Dates

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed
from 24th October, 2012 to 31st October 2012 (bhoth
OF oo Sians Reglatrar M7 Central Depoafiry Company

our Share r M/s. ra mpa

of PakistanRenglm'rted, CDC House, 99-B, BlockB,
8.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi at the close
of the buslness on Thursday, 23rd October 2012, will be
considered in time for the determination of entitlement
of shareholders to attend and vote at the meeting

Legal Proceed!
No case has evenﬁeen filed by shareholders against the
Company for non-receipt of share / dividend.

General Meetings & Voting Rights

Pursuant to Sec"%n 158':# the Companies Ordinance,
1984, ASML holds a General Meeting of Shareholders at
least once a year. Every shareholder has a right to attend
the General Meeting. The notice of such meeting is sent
to all the shareholders at least 21 days re the
meeting and will also published in at least one English
and one Urdu newspaper having clrculation In Sindh
province after listing of Company at KSE.

Proxies

Pursuant to Sectlon 161 of the Companles Ordinance,
1984 and according to the Memorandum and Articles of
Assoeiation of the Company, every shareholder of the
Company who is entitled to attend and vote a General
Meeting of the Company can appoint ancther member
as his / her proxy 1o attend and vote at the meeting.
Every notice calling a General Meeting of the Company
contains a statement that shareholder entitled to attend
and vote [s entitied to appolnt a proxy.

The instrument appointing proxy, duly signed by the
shareholder should be deposited at the office of the
Share Reglstrar of the Company not less than 48 hours
before the megting.

Web Presence

During the year the website of the company has been

redesigned to give an investor friendly look. Further, the

website has been updated in accordance with

with SRO 25(1)/2012 of SECP dated 16th January 2012,

U Information about the Company and [Its
ligtes can be accessed at ASML web site,

www.aishasteel.com

gl £ I ital of
e ing m e equity share cap

the Company as on 30th June 2012 alongwith
categories of shareholders are glven on page 79to 84 of
this report.
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Dear Fellow Shareholders

The Directors have great pleasure In
presenting the Annual Report of your
Company along with the audited
financlal statements for the financlal
year ended on 30th June 2012

together with auditors’ report
thereon.
Qlobal Macroeconomic Scenario

The global economy remalns fraglie
with risks to global economic stabllity
titted towards the downslde. The Eure
Zone Crisls remains the biggest
concern for the global economy which
if escalates will lead to turmoil in the
financial markets and a contraction in
global economic activity. According to
official IMF World Economic Outlook
figures, the world economy is
expected to grow at a reduced rate of
3.5% in Calendar Year (CY) 2012
after registering a growth rate of 3.9%
in CY 2011 Economic activity is,
however, expected to pick up in 2013
on the back of forecasted GDP growth
rate of 4.1%.

Economic Indicators suggest that the
above trend will be reflected in the
economies of both developed and
emerging nations.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Global Steel Scenarlo

The global stesl Industry has
witnessed a marked shift In
geographical  production  and
consumption pattems during the past
decade. Chinese productdon of
finlshed steel products, which
accounted for 20% of word
production In 2001, now stands at
48%. In effect, Aslan natlons, led by
China, have captured slignificant
market share from thelr European,
Amerlcan and Japanese
counterparts.

This shift in production pattems
became more proncunced after the
financial mehldown of 200802 and
the ensuing economic slump. OECD
courntries and Euro Zone nations in
particular, have been the slowest to
recover from the crises as a result of
fiscal austerity measures, ballooning
public and private debt levels due to
worsening economic conditions in
Greece, Spain.

With consumption pattemns of
finished steel products following a
similar trend, the developing world
now acts as a key driver for sustaining
growth in the global steel industry.
Steel consumption in Asian and

Share of World Crude Steel Production - July 2012
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Middle East markets are below 50kgs
per caplta Indicating huge potentlal
for growth In demand In these
reglons.

However, systemic risks remaln and,
in the short run at least, growth In
China and other developing natlons
wili not be spared from any negative
developments emanating from the
Euro Zone.

Current demand for finished steel
products remalns relatively flat as a
result of the Chinese central bank's
efforts to contaln property price
inflation throughout 2011 along with
growing fears about the fate of the
Euro Zone.Going forward, the global
steel demand is expected to rise on
account of increasing population and
industrialization. Growth forecast for
2011 is estimated at 5.3%; however,
long term demand growth is expected
to revive at higher levels. Hot Rolled
Steel prices have remained at the
lower end of the spectrum after
peaking at USD730 per ton in July
2011 which have now come down to
less than USDE00 per ton. K is
unlikely that HRC prices will firm up in
near future and shall remain under
pressure.

Global Steel Demand Forecast
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Source: World Stesl Association, World Bank
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Global Cold Rolled Sheet industry

Cold Rolled Coll (CRC) remalns an Important part of the
global steel Industry, accounting for 10% of the world's
stee| production.

Malor CRC consumers Include Industries such as
automoblle, construction, home appliances,
engineering and plpe manufacturing. Consequently,
growth In demand for CRC Is directly linked to activity In
the aforementioned industres.

Domestic Economy

The fiscal year under review proved to be a mixed year
for Paklstan's economy. On the poslitive side home
remittances and FBR revenue grew at the healthy rate
of 17.7% and 17.8% respectively. Inflation dropped to
single figures In July 2012 reaching 9.3%,allowing the
SBP to reduce the discount rate to 10.5% In August
2012 from 12% In November 2011, On the negative
slde, trade deficit Increased to USD 24 bllllon as
compared to USD 15 blllion In previous year recording
a current account deflcit of USD 4.5 blllion as
compared to surplus of USD 0.2 blllion In previous
year. Fiscal deficit was substantial owing to higher than
budgeted subsidies on power and fertilizers. Foreign
investment was dismal with a net inflow of USD742
million for FDI and portfolio. The country has been
plagued by a crippling power crisis and a deteriorating
law and order situation that results in lower productive
activities. Higher international oil prices, lower cotton
prices and excessive subsidies incurred by the
Government on Power and Fertilizers were other major
factors for negatives in Pakistan economy.
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Industrial Highlights

The demand for steel in Pakistan has constantly
been on rise as the economy exhibits economic
growth. Domestic supply however, continues to lag
and is evident by an average shortfall of 3.3 million
tons per annum. Total steel production in 2011
was estimated at 0.4 million tons while demand
was close to 6 million tons. This shortfall has been
compensated by Imports that continue to Increase
Paklistan’s trade deficit. Pakistan's per caplta steel
consumption Is among the lowest globally at
¢.27kgs In comparison to a reglonal average of
207.8kgs and a global average of 181.5 kgs.

However, given that there Is significant growth In
the country’s local demand for steel In both the
short and long run, there exists a huge growth
opportunity for your Company and the Pakistan(
steel Industry In general.

Currently the annual demand for CRC Is between
450,000-500,000 metric tons per annum. With
start of production from your Company, the local
manufacturers of CRC hamely, Alsha Steel Mills
Limlited, Pakistan Steel Mills and Intematlonal
Steel Limited can fulflll substantially all of this
demand. However, there are a number of
regulatory and tariff related Issues which would
serlously hamper the abllty of local manufacturers
of CRC to operate at optimum capacities. These
are:

1.The difference between valuation of Prime CRC
and Secondary CRC is taken at 25% by Customs
Department. This regime supports commercial
importers and is stacked against local
manufacturers, All the three manufacturers of CRC
have guoted various intemational examples and
have requested Customs Department to set the
discount of Secondary CRC at 4-5% of Prime CRC
price. This is inline with what all the three local and
Imtemational CRC producers offer on thelr
respective Secondary CRC.

2.Uptlll recently, Pakistan did not have the local
CRC capacity to meet demand of CRC users In
Paldstan. However, with the start-up of state of the
art CRC Complex of Alsha Steel, the three local
producers can meet the local CRC demand.
However, as CRC was not locally avallable In the
past therefore, certaln users of CRC were glven
concesslonary Import tartff under SRO 5665. In
most of the cases, this concesslon Is being abused
by the users of CRC who are Importing CRC more
than thelr consumption and selling additional CRC
In the market to enjoy this duty benefit. As CRC Is
now locally made and the three producers of CRC
are capable to meet domestic requirements,
therefore tariff concesslons to CRC Importers In
Pakistan under SRO 565 should be ellminated to
give a level playing fleld to CRC manufacturers of
Pakistan.

CRC Supply In Pakistan - Year 201213

International Stee! Ltd

% AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED

B Pakistan Steel

Aisha Steel Mills Ltd H |mports




3.Pakistan and China signed Free Trade Agreement
(FTA) in 2006 to promote goods being manufactured in
one country and required in other country to promote
frade between our two brotherly countries. When FTA
was signed there was only one producer of CRCin
Pakistan. Presently, there are three CRC
manufacturers namely Pakistan Steel, Aisha Steel, and
Imtemational Steel which can meet all the lecal CRC
demand. However, under FTA Chinese CRC producers
are allowed to sell CRC to Paldstanl Importers at only
5% duty as agalnst to paying full 10% duty.
Government of Pakistan needs to promote and protect
local Industry and therefore, CRC should be taken out
from FTA with China, otherwlse Import from China will
continue to hamper Paklstan| Importers to operate at
thelr full capactties..

4.Ever since economic and banking sanctions have
been Imposed on Iran, there has been a substantial
Increase In smuggled CRC from Iran via Taftan all the
way to Multan, Lahore and Gujranwalla. As CRC stesl
coll are heavy {(more than 20 metric tons), therefore, It
cannot be hidden or transported via non-metallic road.
According to one estimate between 10-15 trucks
carrying smuggled CRC from Iran cross the border and
ply Pakistan’s main road all the way upcountry.
Smuggling of a bulky product In such a large quantity
cannot be possible In a secret manner and therefore,
we would llke to request the relevant law enforcing
agencles and Customs to take steps to protect local
CRC Industry by enforcing the applicable law of the
land and also protect exchequer which is losing out on
duties and taxes worth hillions of rupees.

Market Share

Your Company will be the largest supplier of CRC inthe
market and will have competitive advantage over other
producers in Pakistan due to superior Japanese
technology machinery. However, cther producers do
not pose any direct competition risk as domestic
demand is more than sufficient to absorb 100%
domestic supply.

In view of the above your Company foresees to be a
major participant In the leading manufacturers of CRC
In the domestlc market. In addItion, the management
Is confident In the Company’s abliity to produce high
quality of CRC that can be used In the automoblie
sector In Pakistan.This abliity will make further Inroads
Into the relatively emergingcut-to-size high end users’
CRC.

The Project & Company

To meet the rising demand of steel In the englneerng,
automoblle, construction, heme appllances,
engineering and plpe Industries the concept of your
Company was concelved In the year 2005 by one of lts
founder sponsor Mr. Haslb Rehman, the President of
Universal Metal Group Japan, and for this purpase he
established and got Incorporated ASML on May 30,
2005 as a public limited company.

Shareholding Structure

B Aif Habib Group
W Matal One Comporation
Unhvwersal Metal Group
B Pre PO Investors
OFS Investors/Fublic

B pref. Specie Dividend
Holders
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After incorporation of ASML, Mr. Hasib
Rehman invited Metal One Corporation
Japan and Arif Habib Group to join Universal
Metal Group in this project as Joint Venture
Partners. The cold rolling project has a name
plate capacity of 220,000 tons per annum
located at plot of 50 acres in Downstream
Industrial Area of Pakistan Steel Mills, Bin
Qasim, Karachi. The project includes Pickling
Line, 4-High Cold Rolling & Skin-pass Mill,
Batch Annealing Fumaces, and Recoiling
Line. Additionally to be the foremost value
added producer of CRC to cater to high-end
customers, ASML has installed Electrolytic
Cleaning Line giving it a competitive edge in
value added CRC segment.

However, in Year 2008 - 09 due to the
financial meftdown in the Country and
sudden devaluation in Rupee-Dollar parity,
the Project faced huge cost overruns and
went on halt. To face and accept this
challenge, one of the aforesaid Joint Venture
Partners i.e. Arif Habib Group (AHG) on the

request of other two Partners came forward
and took the management of the Project
under the esteemed leadership of its Group
Chairman Mr. Arif Habib. AHG injected further
capital of Rs. 759 million and arranged cost
overruns financing of Rs.1,900 million from
the syndicate of banks.With Metal One
Corporation providing full technical support,
the Project was completed by June 30, 2012
and there after started its trial run
production.

Even though there have been ups and downs
in our Project, the steadfastness of Arif Habib
Group, MOC/Mitsubishi Group, Universal
Metal Group and all our lenders has enabled
us to come this far.

ASML has achieved a complete tumaround
due to the support of all its stakeholders and
is now the largest investment in steel sector
achieving production since Pakistan Steel in
1970s.




Listing of Company

During the year under review, the Board
approved the listing of Company at the
Karachi Stock Exchange by Offer for Sale
of 10 million shares at par value of
PKR10/share by existing shareholders
(three JV Partners) alongwith a Pre-IPO
by way of new 23.4 million shares
issuance at par.

After obtaining all regulatory approvals
the Pre-IPO Portion was successfully
completed in April 2012 and listing of
Compariy at the KSE was completed in
the manner that subscription of ordinary
shares was held on 3rd and 4th July
2012, balloting was held on 27th July
2012 and ASML shares commenced
trading on August 6, 2012, .

The public subscription has been
oversubscribed by 2.7 times making it
the most successful public offering of
the past three financial years. The
Pre-IPO portion of this transaction
amounting to Rs.234 million achieved a
successful financial close in April 2012
following an cverwhelming response
from the financial sector in the country.
ASML's OFS also has the privilege of
being the first public offering using
e-subscription, as well as subscription
using mobile phones.

One of the major shareholder and JV
Partners of the Company M/s. Arif Habib
Corporation Limited have also
distributed 41.25 million convertible
preference shares of ASML having a
face value of Rs. 412.5 million as
interim specie dividend to its

shareholders for the nine months period
ended 31st March 2012. Consequently,
your Company also listed its Corvertible

Preference Shares at the Karachi Stock

Exchange.

Company’s Operations

The year under review was landmark for
Aisha Steel Mills Ltd as the Company
has successfully completed the
construction phase of the Project and
started its hot run in May 2012 after
being energized a few weeks earlier. The
Company commenced technical
commercial operations in June 2012 by
initiating trial production in line with
Japanese standards, to ensure prime
quality CRC supply to the commercial
market. ASML commenced sale of CRC
in August 2012

We are pleased to share that the
response received from the market for
our product has been cverwhelming. We
are grateful to our 18 exclusive
dealerpartners for this success.

Confidence of our Dealer Partners can
be further gauged from the fact that our
dealers have placed security deposit
with ASML to become part of this
exclusive ASML Dealers’ Club.

Uptill September 15, 2012 cur sales
figure has crossed c. PKR 220 M {3,000
MT). As we are in a step up phase
therefore our monthly sales will increase
accordingly for us to achieve our yearly

target.

Besides sales through our exclusive
dealer partners, we have also initiated
direct sale to end customers, which will
build on as we progress forward.

Your Company is fortunate to be part of
Mitsubishi Group. Metal One
Corporation (majority owned by
Mitsubishi Corporation), one of the
largest steel trading Corporation in the
world, provide ASML an edge in
procurement of our raw material Hot
Rolled Coils (HRC). Thanks to Metal One
Corporation, ASML has been able to
develop a strong relationship with
Nippon Steel Corporation, a premier
supplier of HRC. In addition to this, your
Company has also developed direct
relationship with another renowned HRC
supplier; POSCO, South Korea.

As of September 2012 ASML has
procured 38,600 MT HRC {¢.17,000 MT
HRC has reached ASML) ensuring
sufficient raw material supply for smooth
operations for the next couple of
months.

ASML is currently operating in two shifts
with its third shift is expected to start in
November 2012,

The Company is in the process of
building is technical base further.
Besides Japanese and Austrian
Supervisor (8) are constantly training the
existing work force and ensuring prime
guality CRC, ASML has also inducted 9
Bangladeshi experienced engineers and
technicians to supplement lack of
experience professionals in CRC sector.
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The Company’s Results
The surmmary of financial results is as follows:-

Loss before tax

Taxation - Deferred

Loss / profit after tax

Appropriations

Accumulated losses - caried forward
Earnings per share - Rupee

(51,590)
190,029
139,339

(354,581)
0.39

- Adminkewetive Expanses —mm— [Lossj Proft sfier Tax

During the year under review, your Company incurred
a net loss before tax of Rs. 132.44 million and loss
after tax of Rs. 86.08 million as compared to loss
before tax of Rs. 51.60 million and a profit after tax of
Rs.139.34 million in the comresponding vear ended
on 30 June 2011. There are certain factors which
resulted in such a large positive variance between
the loss before tax for the current and last vear. The
administrative expenses have increased as
compared to comesponding year on account of
substantial increase in the human resource,
extensive local and international traveling & training
for the purposes of project completion, and listing
expenses which was initiated during the year.

Also, during the current vear the Company also
recorded deferred tax asset according to the
requirements of International Accounting Standard
-12 “Income Taxes” to the extent of future probable
profits which resufted in recording of corresponding
income of Rs.46.35 milion as compared to
Rs.190.29 million in the corresponding year.

Future Outlook

Going forward, ASML intends to become not only the
largest seller of CRC in Pakistan but also the best
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quality producer by offering all grades of CRC. ASML
plans io achieve this objective by increasing its
capacity utilization, leveraging the extensive dealers
network while simultaneously initiating direct sale to
customers, improving operational safety and
continuously improving our human capital. All
through these thrusts, the Company will aim to
uphold the highest standards of comporate
governance, clean environment and creale a
reputation of integrity. The Company has prepared an
achievable budget for 2012-13, backed by robust
business planning and is confident of delivering on
these geals. As is the case with most company’s in
start-up phase, due to high fixed costs and ramping
up affect of capacity utilization, first year of
production always remains the most challenging,
however, we are confident to face these chanllenges.
Moreover, we are expecting that the Government will
provide a level playing field to local manufacturers of
CRC by removing anomalies in regulatory and tariff
regimes and make CRC sector inline with other
sectors.

To achieve the above stated future outiook the Beard
of Directors of your Company has resolved in its
today's meeting 1o declare October 1, 2012 as the
Commergial Operation Date of ASML




Risk Management

The risk management system of the Company established by the Board comprises of a wide range of finely tuned
organizational and procedural components and is capable of identifying events and developments impairing the
going-concem status of the Company. The risk management system is designed to promote a balanced approach to
risks at all organizational levels,identify and analyze the opportunities and risks at an early stage, their measurement
and the use of suitable instruments to manage and monitor risks.

With the Company’s key business being that of a manufacturing concem, it has evolved its risk management system as
its production & sales strategy has evolved. Starting with raw material procurement, the Company has always followed
a policy of diversification between sources and quality and at the same time basing decisions regarding product mix
requirements of the market on fundamental customers demand and market analysis and following the golden rule of
value investing.

The Company manages its risk by applying caution with respect to the stock selection and inventory levels; avoiding
concentration risk, ensuring credit/receipt of clean funds from the buyer dealers and continuously assessing the
capacity of the courterparty. In addition, the Company has played a continuing role through its representatives in the
development of sector on both ends of manufacturers & customers' awareness and simplification of customs and tariff
matters.

For operational risk management, the starting point has
always been carrying out an in depth analysis before
making investment in inventory procurement globally, and
supplementing that with hiring of qualified and
experienced professionals, applying budgetary and other
intemal controls, continuing review of performance of the
procurement, production, sales and corporate govermance
segments and taking comrective measures as and when
needed.

The detalled Qualitative Reports and Quantitative analysls
on Risk management Is presented In note no. 30 to the
financlal statements.

Risk Factors and Mitigants
Risk Criticality Mitigant

Foreign exchange risk is contained to a minimum level as the
Foreign Exchange Risk: Medium product will act as an Import substitute. The price of finished
Adverse foreign exchange goods, namely CRC, is linked to prices in the intemational
movement can Incregse the market, which are quoted in USD, thus protecting the Company
price of input and reduce from any adverse exchange fluctuations.

profitability.

Currently the demand for CRC exceeds domestic production by
Business Risk / Offtake Rlsk  Medium a significant amount. ASML has & three year sales and
Decrease in demand for distribution agreement with Mitsubshl Corporation for

products may have an adverse ensuring 100% sales.

impact on the business
Demand is expected to increase due to multiple factors
Business Cycle Risk including economic growth of the country, rising population

Steel is a cydlical industry thus leading to increased consumption of finished steel goods,
exposing ASML to adverse change in consumption pattem as a result of increased
price  fluctuations  during affluence, and increase in post flood re-<construction activities.

business cycle movements.
Despite the cyclical nature of steel industry, margins between
Credlt Risk CRC and HRC are relatively stable in the long run. Based on
There is a risk that the historic averages margin of USD 88/ MT exists between HRC
Compsany will be unable to and CRC prices. In addition to that tariff protection provides
meet Its financlal obligations additional cushion to the margin.
and hence will default on its
commitment to repay the debt. Backed by leading Arif Hablb Group and world renowned
Mitsubishi Group (having revenue greater than Pakistan's GDP)
provides assurance of the financial muscle ASML possesses in
terms of Sponsors’ Support.

Annual Report 2012 31



Caplital Management and Liquidity

The Company’s cash flows management system projects cash inflows and outflows on a regular basis as
well as monitoring cash position on a daily basis. Keeping in view the saving in financial cost owingto a
dedlining trend in KIBOR, the Company manages its working capital requirements through KIBOR based
funded and nonfunded lines with different banks and financial institutions. As part of long-term strategy the
fixed assets are maintained out of long term borrowings.

During the financial year 2011-12 the weighted average cost of borrowings, including exchange losses, was
15.47% per annum as against last year average borrowing rate of 16.52%.

The long term debt equity ratio of the Company on 30th June 2012 was 68:32 as against 64:36 as on 30th
June 2011

We are pleased to share with you that your Company has been given long term and short term entity rating
of ASML “A-* (Single A minus) and “A2” (A Two), respectively by the JCRVIS Credit Rating Co. Ltd. (JCR-VIS).
These ratings denote good quality credit with good certainty of timely payment along with liquidity factors

and sound company fundamentals.

CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY

Corporate Soclal Responsibliity

ASML is committed towards fulfilling its Corporate
Social Responsibility and has plans to actively
discharge its Corporate Social Responsibility with
special focus on healthcare, education,
envionment, community welfare, sports and
relief work aiming to enhance its scope and
confribution over time. During the year the
Company has also commissioned its Effluent
Treatment Plant (ETP) o have a greener
environment by treating the waste water of the
Mill thus ensuring sustainable operations. The
items which pose potential hazard for the
humans and environment are banned in ASML
premises. Smoking is only allowed in designated
areas.

Energy Conservation

We at ASML are conscious of the wellbeing of our
employees as well as community at large.The
Company focuses on energy conservation and all
departments and employees adhere to the power
conservation measures. Furthermore, the
Company also plans to install a Reverse Osmosis
Plant which will fulfill all addidonal purlfled water
requirements at the mill.

Human Resource Managemsnt

Your Company takes great pride In the
commitment, competence and vigour shown by
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its workdforce in all realms of business. The
Company continues to take new initiatives to
further align its HR policies to meet the growing
needs of its business. People development
continues to be a key focus area in your Company.

At ASML Human Resource, in its business partner
role, enacts strategies to raise the performance
of each team member to its maximum potential.
The primary reason for our success is that our
organization is not built solely around machines,
it is also built around people.

Our continuous improvement philosophy and
benchmarking with the best in class will help in
making ASML a high performance organization.




Environment, Health & Safety (EHS)

ASML is aiming to get certified for Integrated Management System of OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO
14001:2004. We have a fully committed and communicated HSE policy in place. We are working on
building the management systems required to achieve our goal.

So, far the following systems are being implemented and followed within ASML:

1. Emergency Response Plan

2. Incidents Reporting, Recording and Management
3. Hazardous Material Storage and Handling

4. Permit to Work System

5. Corrective and Preventive Actions

6. Safe Food Handling in Canteen

7. Lock Out & Tag Out System

Apart from the above mentioned systems the EHS team has also implemented the daily safety talls
culture onsite and a daily 10 - 15 minute safety talk is delivered on a selected topic in a selected area.
For all incidents analysis and investigation a well know method of TRIPOD BETA is used and mitigation
measures are being taken on priority.

In the coming months “Fire Fighting Training” & “Certified First Aid Training” is planned to be conducted
in ASML premises to equip the employees with necessary skills to meet any emergency needs.

Industirial Relations

Your Company believes in providing an equitable, fair and merit based environment. We believe that if
permanent and contracted emplovees are treated fairly and with respect then that would result in high
motivation of workforce thus resulting in peaceful and continuous operations. We intend to maintain
this approach in years to come.

Gratulty Scheme as Retirement Benefit

The Company maintains plan that provide retirement benefits to its employees. This includes a
non-contributory and unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees.

Equal Opportunkty Employer and Employment of Special Peraons

Your Company takes pride in equal opportunity and therefore provides employment opportunities on
merit irespective of sex, creed, religion or any other affiliation. On a relative basis, ASML hired most
number of female engineers during vear under review and is pleased to share that these female
engineers are contributing significantly towards progress of your Company. In addition to equality, your
Company also plans to give employment opportunities to persons with special needs.

Information Systems and Re-Enginsering

SAP - ERP Business Suite is being implemented in the Company and is scheduled 1o go live in October
2012. The introduction of SAP will bring about considerable improvements in the areas of functional
integration, record management, intemnal controls, process efficiencies and adoption of best practices.
This will facilitate the generation of real time information for the management and enhance effective
and optimal decision making.

Annual



Cantribution 1o the Natlonal Exchaguear

Your Company takes fts contribution towards natlonal
economy seriously and has always discharged its
obligations in a transparent, accurate and timely manner.
The Company has coniributed over Rs. 332.3 Million
during the year towards Natlonal Exchequer comprising of
income tax, sales tax, duties and other taxes.

Corporate Governance

Subsequent to the Balance Sheet Date ASML has been
listed at the Karachi Stock Exchange. The Company’s
Board and Management are committed 10 observa the
Code of Corporate Govemnance prescribed for listed
companies and are familiar with their responsibilities and
monitor the operations and performance to enhance the
accuragy, comprehensiveness and tiransparency of
financlal and norHinanclal Information.

The Board Is pleased to state that:

= The financlal statements, prepared by the
Management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

= Proper books of account of the Company have been
maintained;

+ Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

* |ntemmational Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan have been followed in
preparation of the flnanclal statements and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

» The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored;

= There are no significant doubts reganding the
Company’s abllity to contlnue as golng concem;

» There has been no material departure from the best
practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations;

= |nformation regarding outstanding taxes and levies as
required by the listing regulations is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

= The Company has no outstanding obligations under
funded gratulty, penslon or provident fund.

In compliance with the Code, the Board hereby reaffirm
that there is no doubt whatsoever about the Company’s
abliity to continue as a golng concem and that there has
been no material departure from the best practices of
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comorate governance as detailed in the listing regulations
and transfer pricing.

One director has participated in four parts of Corporate
Governance Leadership Skills Program during the year. The
Company has planned to hold tralning sesslons for its
directors in the cumrent year. It has always been the
Company’s endeavor to excel through better Corporate
Governance and fair and transparent practices, many of
which have already been In place even before they were
mandated by law or ASML got listed.

Trading In Company's Share by Directors and
Exacutives

During the year no Directors including the Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, and Executives of the Company
made any trade as the Company's ordinary and preference
share were listed subsequent to the balance sheet date.
Furthermore, it is informed to all above concerned persons
1o deliver written notices to the Company Secretary 1o
Immediately Inform In writing any trading In the Company’s
shares by themselves or by their spouses and to deliver a
written record of the price, number of shares and CDC
statement within 4 days of such transaction.

Attendance at Board Meetings

A statement showing attendance at Board meetings is
annexed as Annexure.

Pattemn of Shareholding

The shares of the Company have been listed on Karachl
Stock Exchange subsequent to the balance sheet date.
There were 14 ordinary shareholders and 7150 preference
shareholders of the Company (being unquoted) as of 30
June 2012. The detailed pattem of shareholding and
categorles of sharcholding of the Company Including
shares held by directors and executives, if any, are given in
Page No.791o B4,

Financial and Business Highlights

The key operating and financial data has been given in
summarized form under the caption “Financial Indicators®
Page No. 42 and graphlc presentation of the Important
statistics is presented on Page No. 46.




Audit Committee

As requlired under the Code of Corporate Govemance, the Audit Committee continued to perform as per Its
terms of reference duly approved by the Board, The Committee composttion and Its terms of reference are
also attached with this report. The compositdon of Audit Committee will be made In line with requlrements of
‘Code of Corporate Governance 2012’ at the time of next election of directors In accordance with the
‘Implementation deadlines of Code of Corporate Govemance 2012',

Auditors

The present external auditors M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, shall retire at the conclusion
of annual general meeting on 31st October 2012 and being eligible, have offered themselves for
reappointment for the year ending on 30th June 2013. The extemal auditors hold satisfactory rating by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (IGAP) as required under their Quality Conttrol Review Program.
As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board recommends reappointment of M/s. A F. Ferguson & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending on 30th June 2013 at a fee
to be mutually agreed. Approval to this effect will be sought from the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting scheduled on 31st October 2012.

Compllance with Secretarlal Practices

The Company Secretary fumished a Secretarial Compliance Certificate, in the prescribed form, as required
under prevalent listing regulation 3500w) of Karachi Stock Exchange, as part of the annual return filed with the
Registrar of Companies to certify the secretarial and corporate requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 and listing regulations have been duly complied with.

Election of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 180 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 the three years term of
directors elected in the annual general meeting of 27th October 2011 will be completed on 26th October
2014.

Post Balance Sheet Events

There have been no material changes since 30th June 2012 to the date of this report.
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Related Party Transactions

In order to comply with the requirements of listing regulations, the Company presented all related party transactions
before the Audit Committee and Board for thelr revlew and approval, These transactions have been approved by the
Audit Committee and Board of Directors In thelr respective meetings. The detalls of related party transactions have
been provided In note 28 of the annexed audited financlal statements,

Acimowledgement

The Directors are grateful to the Company’s stakeholders for thelr continuing confidence and patronage. We wish to
place on record our appreclation and thanks for the falth and trust reposed by our Business Partners, Bankers &
Financial Institutions. We thank the Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Industries & Production, the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, the State Bank of Pakistan, the Competition Commission of Pakistan, Central Depository
Comparny of Pakistan and the Managements of Karachi Stock Exchange for their continued support and guidance
which has gone a long way in giving present shape to the company.

The results of an organization are greatly reflective of the efforts put in by the people who work for and with the
company. The Directors fully recognize the collective contribution made by the employees of the Company for
successful completion of project during the year and start of trial operations of the Company. We also appreciate the
valuable contribution and active role of the members of the audit and other committees in supporting and guiding the
management on matters of great importance.

For and on behalf of the Board
Mido Kinoshita Kashif Shah
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: 29th September 2012



ANNEXURE|

Statement of Attendance of
Board of Directors -July 1, 2011 to
June 30, 2012

Noof mestings held  Meetings attended

during the year

Mr. Satoru Oki* 7 5 Outgoing Chairman & Director
Mr. Miko Kinoshita** 7 2 In Coming Chairman & Director
Mr. Arif Hablb 7 7 .
Mr. Hasib Rehman 7 - Remained out of country and appointed
altemate directors
Mr. Yoshikazu Uda 7 7 -
Mr. Muhammsad Ejaz 7 7 .
Mr. Ali Akhtar Khan 7 4 Blected as director in the election
heid on 27 october 2011
Mr. Muhammad Murtaza Chinoy*** 7 1 Alternate Director of
Mr. Hasib Rehman (Deceased)
Mr. Liagquat All 7 1 Altemate Director of Mr. Haslb Rehman
Mr. Kashif Shah 7 6 -




ANNEXURE 1l

Statement showing shares bought and sold by Directors, CEO, CFD, Company Secretary and thelr Spouses
and Minor Children from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012

Mr. Satoru Okd* Chalman - - - -
Mr. Mike Kinoshita** Chaimman - = E =
Mr. Arif Habib Director - - = i
Mr. Haslb Rehman Director - = - -
Mr. Yoshilazu Uda Director - 5 . =
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz Director = 5 - .
Mr. All Akhitar Khan Director - - = .
Mr. Moharmmad Chinoy*+* Alternate Director of

Mr. Hasib Rehman - - = @
Mr. Liaquat All*+* Altemate Director of

Mr. Hasib Rehman - - = .
Mr. Kashif Shah Chief Bxecutive - E - .
Mr. Tahlr lgbal CFO & Company Secretary

*Newly appolnted Chalrman

*¥*Quigoing Chalrman
*#¥*Altemate Director / UMC Group




Evaluation of Board Performance and Criteria Used

As the Board of Directors acts as the custodian of the
shareholders’ money and is responsible to over see its
translation into chjectives for the Company, the Board
has put in place a mechanism for performance evalution
by setting specific, measurable, achievable and realistic
goals for the year and evaluating the performance of
each member against these goals. The Directors have
set the following evaluation criteria to judge its
performance:

*  Corporate Governance,

* Compliance with regulatory requirement of legal
framework,

Value addition for all Stakeholder for the Company,
Financial performance of the Company
Attendance of directors in meetings;

Frequency of meeting during the year;

Participation and application of collective wisdom
in pursuing Company’s corporate objectives , vision
and mission statement while adhering to the
principles of core values/ code of conduct and
ensuring compliance with the regulatory frame
WOTK.

The Board remains satisfied that during the year it truly
strived for the above.

Core Competencies

The Board comprises highly qualified professional from
all disciplines to ensure effective and efficient decision
making. The Board includes professionals from the steel,
finance and engineering sectors forming an excellent
combination of highly experienced professionals to run
the affalrs of the Company.

CEQ’s Performance Review

Amongst the key responsibliiies of the Board of
Directors Is to warrant success of the Company by way
of effective management. CEQ Iz empowered by the
Board to efficlently run the organlzation leading K
towards progression and conirlbuting value to He
gtakeholders.

Mr. Kashif Shah, the present CEO of the Company was
appointed by the Board on July 26, 2011 and he
resumed his office effective August 1, 2011

The Board has observed that under his esteemed
leadership the management team has successfully
completed the Project (construction phase),
commencement and completion of tral operations,
arrangement of requisite working capital financing and
subscription of Pre IPQ of PKR 234 M coupled with listing
of the Company on the Karachi Stock Bchange by way of
Offer of Sale of 10 M shares, while operating within the
policy guidelines of the Board and ensuring compliance
with all regulatory framework.
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NOTICE OF EIGHT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Eight Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Aisha Steel Mills Limited (“The
Company™) will be held on Wednesday 31st October 2012 at 4:30 pm at the Beach Luxury Hotel, Moulvi Tamizuddin
Khan Road, Karachi to fransact the following business:

1) To confirm minutes of the Seventh Annual General Meeting held on 27th October 2011

2) To recelve, consider and adopt annual audited financlal statements of the Company together with the Directors’
and the Auditors’ Reports thereon for the year ended 30th June 2012.

3) To appoint the Auditors for the year ending 30th June 2013 and fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors
have recommended M/s. A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants for reappointment as extemnal auditors.

4) To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.
By order of the Board

=

Tahlr igbal
Chief Financlal Officer &
Company Secretary

Karachi; Sth October 2012

Notes:

1. Share transfer books of the company will remain closed from 24th October to 31st October 2012 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our registrar: M/s. Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, by the close of
business on Tuesday 23rd October 2012 will be treated in time for the determination of entilement of
shareholders to attend and vote at the meeting.

2, A member entitied to attend and vote at the meeting may appolint another member as his / her proxy who shall
have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are avallable to a member.

3. Procedure including the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. | Reference No. 3{5-A) Mis¢/ARD/LES/96
dated 26th January 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

(i) Members, proxies or nominees shall authenticate their identity by showing their original national identity card
or original passport and bring their folioc numbers gt the time of attending the meeting.

(ii) In the case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney and attested copy of the CNIC
or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earier) at the time of meeting.

(i)  Inorderto be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our registrar not later than 48 hours
before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons with thelr names, address, NIC
numbers and signatures.

{ivy  Inthe case of individuals, attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

(v In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attomey and attested copy of
the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted alongwith proxy form.

4. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in address by writing to the office of the registrar.
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CORPORATE EVENTS

Analyst Conference/ Investor Presentation - KSE:
ASMLUiconducted an Investor Presentetion at KSE on
Juned?6, 2012 and an Analyst Briefing on June 27,
2012 at the Arabian Sea Country Club for their Offer
ppSale of 10 (M) ordinary shares. Both the events
re attended by various senior representatives of
anks/DFls, Brokerages Houses, KSE members and
NW Individuals. Mr. Arif Habib Group Chairman, Arif
Habib Group ,Mr Kimihide Aando, Country Manager
Mitsubishi Corporation and Mr. Kashif Shah, CEO -
Aisha Steel Mills Ltd addressed these briefings.

e

Listing of Alsha Steel Milis Lid
Both Ordinary as well as Preference shares of Aisha
Steel Mills were listed as of August 6, 2012,

The Gong Ceremony on the occasion of formal listing
of both securities was held which was attended by
Mr. Arf Habib, Chairman Arif Habib Group, Mr
Yoshikazu Uda, Director Metal One Corporation
Japan, and Mr. Kashif Shah, CEQ ASML. Mr. Nadeem
Nagqvi, MD KSE, Mr. Haroon Askari, DMD KSE and Mr.
Muhammad Ghufran, DGM Company Affairs was
present.

ASML common shares opened up 10% at the start of
trading.

Dealers’ Conference:
Aisha Steel Mills Ltd conducted its first Dealer
Conference on March 20, 2012 to promote
knowledge base and cohesiveness amongst the
Pakistan CRC industry.

ASML has selected 18 reputable dealers mapping
out the entire CRC market in Pakistan. A grand
ceremony was held on March 20, 2012 to ink in the
distribution network. Mitsubishi Corporation played a
critical role in selection, short listing and finalization
of these 18 exclusive dealer partners of ASML.

ra
il

SAP (Phass I) Go Live

ASML has not only become the first Company in the
local steel industry to implement SAP, but is also the
first company in Pakistan to have SAP completely
virtualized on VM Ware.To stream line processes and
o enable real time decision making, ASML has
implemented SAP.

Commencement of Tral Production

ASML successfully commenced frial production in
June 2012. This marks a proud achievement for the
Project Team. Commercial Operations Date was
achieved on Cetober 1, 2012.
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

{Rs. In milllon}

Balance Sheet 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Non-Current Asssts 9,792 7170 5,582 3,748 1,734 243
Current Assets 1,155 1306 226 370 72 8
Total Assets 10.847 8,476 5,819 4118 1,807 248
Non-Current Liabilities 5,830 4,892 3477 2,242 108 B
Current Liabilities 2,020 634 847 168 680 27
Total Liabllitles 7,950 5,627 4,323 2,409 166 27
Paid up Capital 3,438 3,200 1,980 1,989 - -
Total Equity 2,908 2,849 1,495 1,709 1641 221
Income Statemeant 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Administrative Expenses 158 107 75 124 57 28
Financial Cost 15 5 159 89 o 10
(Loss)/Profit after Tax (86) 139 (214) (179) {39) 38
Cashfiow Statement 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Cashfiow from Operations (778) (657) (378) (141) (86) (17)
Cashfiow from Investing Activities (L720) (942) (1,448) (2.003) (1,488) {171)
Cashfiow from Financing Activities 1,068 2,428 1,629 2,381 1637 190
Net change in cash and cash equivalents {1,431) 829 {195) 237 63 Al
Cash and cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 939 110 305 68 5 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {492) 839 110 308 68 5

The financial highlights and key performance indicators are until June 30, 2012, which is before the start of ASMLs aperations. Further, your
Company's Board resolved in the meeting dated September 29, 2012 to announce the Commercial Operations Date as October 4, 2012,

Koy Performance Indicators 2012 2011 2040 2009 2008 2007
Return on Equity -2.59% 4.9% -14.3% -10.5% 2.4% A7.0%
Basic EPS Q.82 0.39 (1.08) {0.94) {0.34) (4.48)
Breakup value per share 8.72 8.80 752 859 942 10.00
Financlal leverage rato 216 179 259 1.31 0.07 -
Debt to Equity ratio 198 175 251 131 0.08 -
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION AND DISTRIBUTION

{Rs. In million}

WEALTH CREATED
Total Revenue - B
Other Income 38,874 59,148
Cash & Bank - Opening 938,540 109,617
Share capital 234,294 1,214,807
Short term finance 529,386 -
Long term finance 827,120 1,215,799

2588214 2588471
DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS
To Employees
Salares, wages and other benefits Including retirement benefits 118,795 64 417
To Govemment
Income tax, sales tax, excise duly and custom duty 332,342 48,986
WPPF and WWF - -
To Soclely
Donations and welfare activities - -
To providers of Capital
Dividend 1o sharehoiders - -
Finance Cost of borrowed funds 495,898 602,696
To Suppliers
To Suppliers for capital goods 1,556,668 897,421
To other Suppliers 21,228 47411
Ratained In the businoss
Closing Cash balances 37,283 938,540

2288214 2599471

Distribution of Wealth - 2012 Distriburtion of Wealth - 2011
Business :;: oy
i% " 2% Goverment
5% Employess
Reinlned In the
business Providers of Capital
38% 23%
Governmant
13%
Providers of Capital
19%
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS

{Rs. In milllon}

2013 % 2011 % 2010 % 009 % 2008 % SOET %
BALANCE SHEET
Non-Currant Asswls
Proparty plant and equlpment 8482 BT% 6927 82% 5544 g5% 3702 B80% 1678 23% 9 4%
Intangibie assets 11 0% (1] % 1 0% o 0% 0 0% 4] 0%
Long Term Loans 4 o% 3 o% - -
Long term depcslts and prapeyments LE ] % 48 1% 4B 1% 48 1% 56 3% 234 24%
Deferred tax asset 257 % 191 2% - % - 0% 0% %

9792 8% 7170 86% 5582 o95% 3748 21% 1,734 86% 243 98%
Current Asseds
Shorss and apares 13r 1% a2 1% a2 2% 50 1% - 0% - 0%
Stock In Trade - Rew Material 420 4% . % - - - . 0%
Advancas, deposits and prepaymenta 20 0% 7 % 20 0% 12 0% 3 0% 4] %
{ther Recievables 139 1% 238 % - - - - 0%
Tax Refund Due from Government - Sales Tax 285 % 22 0% 4] o - = 0%
Accrued markup Q % 2 % 1 % 1 0% 0 0% = %
Texation - Paymeant Less Provislon a8 0% 7 0% 4 0% 2 0% 1 0% = o%
Term Depaoslis a o% - % - 0% - 0% - 17,1 - %
Cash and bank balances a7 0% 938 11% 110 2% 305 7% 88 4% = %

1156 11% 1,306 15% 226 4% 370 9% 72 4% B %
Todal Aepste 10547 100% 84T 100% 5818 2 100% 4118 100% 1,807 100% 248 100%
Shareholdars' Equity
Share Capltal: Ordinary Shares 26880 24% 2448 28% 1989 34% 1989 48% 0 % 4] 0%
Preference Shares 758 ™% 7Bb 2% - 0% - 0% - 0% B 0%
Share Deposit Money - 0% 4 % - % - 0% 1,742 96% 221 89%
Accumulated losses 441) 4% (355) 4% (484 8% [(280) % (10 % = 0%
Total Equity 2988 2T% 2843 34% 1485 26% 1,709 42% 1641 "% 221 B85%
Non-Currant Liabiltles
Longierm finance 5912 74% 4,985 5% 3470 6% 2,238 54% o8 5% - %
Liahliities agalnst assets subject to finance lease 11 0% 5 0% 7 0% 3 0% 8 0% - 0%
StafT natirements benefits ] 0% 3 0% & 0% = 0% = 0% = 0%
Short-term loan = 0% = % = 0% = 0% = 0% = 0%

5930 7E% 4982 58% 3477 60% 2242 ba% 108 6% - 0%
Current Lisbilties
Current maturity of longterm kan 30 % - % 289 B% - D% - 0% - 0%
Cument maturity of llab. against assets subject to Tin. lease 4 0% 2 0% 2 0% 1 D% 2 0% 0%
Shart Term Bomowings 529 % 100 1% 110 2% = 0% = 0% = 0%
Craditors, accrusd expenses and other llablties 592 7% a1 0% a2 1% 152 4% 22 1% 2 2%
Accrued mark-up 885 11% @ 442 8% 382 7% 14 0% 2 % 19 4%
Due to Assoclated Comparny - 0% - % - % - 0% 25 1% 11 5%
Due to Diresior . 0% . % - 0% - D% 10 1% . o%

2020 25% 634 % B47 15% 88 4% 80 3% 27 11%
Toial Lishilties 7950 T3% 5627 66% 432 A% 2400 58% 166 2% 27 11%
Total Equity and Liabilities 10847 100% 8478 100% 5848 2 100% 4148 i00% 1,807 100% 246  100%
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

{Rs. In milllon}
2042 % 2011 % 2010 % 2008 % 2008 % 2007
BALANCE SHEET
Non-Current Aseets
Property plant and equipment 8492 ™% | B89Z 25% 5544 5OW 3702 121% 1678  18476% 8
Intangile asssts 11 2319% 0 -13% 1 126% 0 -34% 0 o% 0
Long Tarm Loans 4 309% 3 A00% 1] 0% - 0% - 0% -
Long term depostis and prepayments 48 1% 48 1% 48 4% 46 -18% 56 -76% 234
Deferred tex assst 237 24% 191 100% 0 0% - 0% - 0% -
9,792 % 7470 28% 5592 49% 3,748 | 116% 1734 814% 243
Cunent Assate
Stores and spanes 137 49% g2 0% 82 B2% 50  100% - 0% -
Stock In Trade - Rew Matsrial 480  100% - o% 0 0% - 0% - 0% -
Advances, deposits and prepayments 20  188% T £4% 20 85% 12 2TT% 3 100% 0
Other Reclovables 139 A2% 238 100% (1] 0% - 0% - 0% -
Texx Refunsd Due from Government - Sales Tax 286  1222% 22 BIET% (1] 5% 0 0% - 0% -
Accrued markcup 0 -73% 2 125% 1 -18% 1 122% 0 100% -
Texation - Payment Lesa Provision 48  555% 7 BO0% 4 9% 2 178% 1 100% -
Tarm Deposits - 0% - 0% (1] o% - 0% - o% -
Cash and bank balances a7 £6% 939 756% 110 -84% 305 348% 68  1148% 5
1,155 42% 1,306 478% 226  -39% 870 A% 72 1229% 5
Total Assets 10,947 % 84N 48% B5S18  41% 4148 128% 1807 a27T% 248
Shareholders' Equity
Shara Capital: Ordinary Sharea 2,680 10% 2448 23% 1989 0% 1989 100% Q 0% Q
Prafarence Shares 758 0% 755 100% - 0% - 0% - 0% -
Share Deposit Money - -100% 4 100% - 0% - 00 4,742 667% 221
Accurnulated losses 441 24%  (355) 28% (484 TI% (280) 177%  {10d) 100% -
Total Equity 2,988 5% 2848 91% 1485 13% 1708 4% 1841 841% 221
Non-Current Liabilties
Long:term finance 5912 19% 4,985 44% 3470 55% 2238 2196% 28 100% -
Liabilities mgaingt assets subject to finance lease 11 142% & 29% 7 109% 3 £52% 8 100% -
Staff retirements benefits &€ 1% 3 1D0% - 0% - 0% - 0% -
Short:0arm loan - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% -
5,830 19% 4,982 44% 3477 55% 2242 2018% 106 100% -
Curent Lisbitties
Current maturtty of long-berm loan 30 100% - A00% 289 100% - 0% - 0% -
Current maturity of llablliies agalnst assets sublect to finance lease 4 23% 2 16% 2 133% 1 58% 2 100% -
Short Term Bomowings B29  429% 100 8% 110 100% - 0% - 0% -
Creditors, accrued expenses and other Eabliitles 592  1357% 41 -36% 64 58% 152  591% 2 316% 5
Accrued markup 885 6% 482 20% 382 2565% 14  B35% 2 80% 10
Due to Associated Company - 0% - 0% - 0% - ~A00% 25 115% 11
Dus to Director - 0% - 0% - 0% - -A00% 10 1009 -
2020 9% B34 25% 847 A06% 168 177% 80 127% 27
Total Liskilties 7,950 4% 5827 30% 4323 79% 2409 1349% 166 525% 27
Total Equity and Lishiities 10,947 20%  BATS 5% 5618 A% 4118 128% 1807 628% 248
INCOME STATEMENT
HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS 2012 % 2011 % 2010 % 2009 % 2008 % 2007
Administrative expenses (158) 48%  {107) 44% {75) -a0% (124) 119% (57) 101% (268)
Other opersting Income 40 53% £0 208% 19 33% 15 A6% 7 3167% 1
Finance cost {15) 229% {5) G7% | (159) 130% (69) 43923% ©) 968% {10}
Loss before teation {132) 157% {62) TE% | (214)  20% (179)  363% {59} 5% {38}
Temation - deferred 46 -T6% 191 100% - 0% - 0% - 0% -
{Loss) / Profit for the year after tax {86) -162% = 139 -185% {214 20% (179) 353% {39) 5% (38)
{Loss) / saming per shara {082) -310% 039 -136% (108 15% (084 176%  (034) B2% (448




GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES

OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Having the status of an Unquoted Company till 30 June 2012 the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) was not applicable
during the year on the Company however the Company has voluntarily taken measures to comply with the CCG in the
following manner:

1 As &t 30 June 2012 the board constitutes the following directors:
Category Names
Independent Directors Mr. Ali Akhtar Khan
Executive Directors Mr. Yoshikazu Uda
Mr. Kashif Shah
Non-Executive Directors Mr Satoru Oki (retired w.e.f. April 27,2012)
Mr. Mikio Kinoshita (w.e.f. April 27, 2012)
Mr. Arif Hablb
Mr. Hasib Rehman
Mr. Muhammad Ejaz
2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is 6. There were no vision / mission statements, and
serving as a director on more than seven listed overall corperate strategy of the Company. However,
companies, including this company (excluding the subsequent to the year end the board has approved
listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where vision / mission statements and overall corporate
applicable). strategy. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were
3. Al the resident directors of the company are approved or amended has been maintained.
registered as taxpayers and ncne of them has
defautted In payment of any loan to a banking All the powers of the board have been duly exerclsed
company, a DFl or an NBH or, belng a member of a and declslons on materal transactions, Inciuding
stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by appeintment and determination of remuneration and
that stock exchange. terms and conditions of employment of the CEQ, other
executive and non-executive directors, have been
4, Acasual vacancy oceurring on the board at the end of taken by the board.
board meeting held on Aprll 27, 2012 which was fllled
up by the directors during the same meeting effecting The meetings of the board were presided over by the
the appolntment of new nominee Director and Chalrman and, In his absence, by a director elected by
Chalrman of Mr. Miklo Kineshita from Aprl 27, 2012 the board for this purpose and the board met at least
In replacement of outgoing nominee Director and once In every guarter. Written notlces of the board
Chalrman Mr. Satoru Okl meetings, along with agenda and working papers,
were clrculated at least seven days before the
5. There was no Code of Conduct Issued by the Company meetings. The minutes of the meetings were

during the year. However subsequent to the year
ended 30 June 2012 the Company has prepared a
“Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate It through out
the Company along with Its supporting policles and
procedures and has also uploaded on the website of
the Company.

appropriately recorded and clrculated.

There was no orlentation course conducted for the
directors during the year.
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10. No new appointment of CFO and Company
Secretary has been made after the revised CCG has
taken effect and the board has already approved
their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment. However, Head of Internal Audit was
appointed on 2nd July 2012 subsequent to the
balance sheet date and his remuneration and terms
and conditions of employment were approved by the
board subsequent to year end.

11. The Directors’ report for this year has been prepared
in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and
fully describes the salient matters required to be
disclosed.

12. The financial statemenis of the Company were
endorsed by CEQ and CFO before approval of the
board.

13. The Directors, CEQ and executives do not hold any
interest in the shares of the company other than that
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The company has complied with all the relevant
corporate and financial reporting requirements of
the CCG.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It
comprises 3 non-executive directors.

18. Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held
during the year prior to approval of interim and
annual financial statements of the company. The
terms of reference of the Committee were formed
and advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource and
Remuneration (HR&R) Committee. It comprises of 4
members, of whom 3 are non-executive directors
and the chaiman of the commitiee is a
non-executive director.

&

. There was no intemal audit function during the year.

o

. The statutory auditors of the company have
confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of
the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the fim,
their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
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of the company and that the firm and all its pariners
are in compliance with Intemational Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated

with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the listing
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21 The related parly transactions have been placed

before the audit commitiee and approved by the
Beard of Directors.

22. As stated above all other material principles

enshrined in the CCG have been complied with
except those which cannot be applied on unlisted
company.

For and on behalf of Board of DirectorS

Mikio Kinoshita
Chairman

Kaghif Shah
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, 29th September 2012
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH BEST PRACTIES OF CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compllance with the best practices contalned In the Code of Corporate Governance (the
Statement), Issued by the Securltles and Exchange Commisslon of Paklstan and Included In listing regulations of the Karachl
Stock BExchange, prepared by the Board of Directors of Alsha Steel Mills Limited. The responslbliity of following the Code of
Corporate Governance (CCG) Is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsiblitty Is to review, to the extent where
such compliance can be oblectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance and report if it does not. A review is limited primarily to
inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and intemal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We have not carried out any special review of the
internal control system to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Board’s statement on internal controls covers all
controls and the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Further, CCG require the compary 1o place before the board of directors for their consideration and approval related party
transactions distinguishing between transactions camied out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in aimm's length
transactions and transactions which are not executed at am’s length price recording proper Justification for using such atterate
pricing mechanism. Further, all such transactions are also required to be separately placed before the audit committee. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board
of Directors and placement of such transactions before the audit committee. We have not carried out any procedures to
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement does not appropriately
reflect the company’s compliance in all material respects with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
for the year ended June 30, 2012.

As mentioned in the Statement, following (reference to the Statement included thereagainst) have been complied with, or are in
the process of compliance subsequent to the year end i.e. June 30, 2012;

i) There was no Code of Conduct (point reference 5 of the Statement);

iy There were no vision/mission statements and overall corporate strategy of the company (point reference 6 of the
Statement);

i)  No orientation course was conducted (point reference 9 of the Statement);

iv) Head of internal Audit has not been appointed by the Company (point reference 18 of the Statement);

L

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: September 29, 2012

Name of the engagement partner: Farrukh Rehman

A. F. FERGUSON & CO.,Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network

State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Aisha Steel Mills Limited as at June 30, 2012 and the related profit and loss
account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then
ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
wera necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and
present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our eudit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well
as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) Inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) In our opinion:
i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied;
i)y the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and
i) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects of the Company;

¢}  Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and
loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof,
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2012 and of the loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) inouropinion, no Zakat was deductable at scurce under the Zakat and Ushr Crdinance, 1980(XVIIl of 1980).

S

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: September, 29.2012

Name of the engagement partner: Farrukh Rehman

A. F. FERGUSON & CO.,Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network

State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan

Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938; <www.pwc.com/pk>
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BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2012

ASSETS

Mon-curront assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Long-tarm Ipans

Long-term daposits and prepayments

Deferred tex

Current assots

Stores and spares
Stock-In-trade - raw material

Advances, deposits and prepayments

COther receivables

Tax refunds due from Govemment - Sales tax

Accrued mark-up

Tenation - payments less provision

Cash and bank balances

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Cumuiative praference sharas
Share deposit mongy
Accumulated losses

Liabllities

Non-current liabliities
Long-term finance

Liabilities against assets subject to

finance leases
Staff retirement benefit

Current llabliites
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short-term bomowings

Currert maturity of long-term finance
Current maturity of llablities against assets

subjact to finance leases

Contingenciee and commitments

Total equity and llabllities

The anneesd notes 110 33 form an Integral part of thesa financlal statements.

Z Qs

Chaiman

52 AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED

Chief Executive Cfficer

Note

= o P O3

10

11

12

13
14

15
18
17
12

13
18

2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
8,481,653 6,827,051
11,343 489
4,032 2,899
47,634 48312
237,281 190,929
9,791,943 7,169,860
137,089 92,238
489,519 -
20,294 7,042
138,854 238,188
285,274 21,578
424 1,589
46.394 7,079
37,283 938,540
1,155,131 1,306,252
10,847,074 8475912
2,580,000 2,445,706
758,201 754,630
- 3571
~ {(a40,669) {354,581)
2,997,537 2,849,326
5,812,082 4,984 912
11,376 4,705
6,125 2,771
5,820,532 4,992 383
582,131 40,631
364,809 491,680
529,386 100,000
30,000 -
3679 1,907
2,020,006 634,198
10,847,074 8475912
Chief Financial Officer




PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 30 June 2012
Note 2012 2011

Rupees ‘000
Administrative expenses 20 {157,992) (107,109)
Other operating income 21 40,394 60,032
Finance cost r (14,837) (4,513)
Loss before taxation (132,435) (51,590)
Taxation - deferred 45,352 190,929
(Loss) / Profit for the year after tax (85,083) 139,339
Other comprahansive income - -
Total comprehensive (loss) / Income {86,083) 139,339

(Rupees)
(Loss) / eaming per share 24 {0.82) 0.39
The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
p_ ;
Chairman C||'I|8f Exacutive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Note 2012 2011
Rupees ‘000

CASH USED IN CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in cperations 25 (278,731) (105,783)
Income tex paid {39,315) {3,145)
Mark-up on loans paid (495,888) (602,969)
Return on bank deposits received 38,874 55,148
Staff retirement banefits paid (2,341) (827
Increase in long-tarm employee loans {1,133) {2,809)
Decreasa / (increase) in long-term deposits and prepayments 678 (518)
Net cash used in operating activities (777,866) (656,993)
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,709,478) (941,773)
Acquisition of intangible assets {11,135) {272)
Sale proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 237 -
Net cash used In Investing activities {1,720,374) (942,045)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share capital Issued 234,284 1,211,336
Share deposit money received - 3asn
Long-term finance obtalned 827,120 1,225,799
Settlement of short-term finance (100,000) {10,000)
Increase / (decreass) In llabliles agalnst assets subjact to

finance leases 6,183 {2,745)
Net cash Inflow from financing activities 1,067,597 2427961
Net (decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents {1,430,643) 828923
Cash and cash equivalents at baeginning of the year 238,540 109,617
Cash and cash equivalants at end of the year 26 (492,103) 238,540

Cashfiow statement basad on direct method has also bean Included In the financlal statements In nota 27.

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ol Vs TR

Chairman Chief Exacutive Officer Chief Financlal Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2012
Share Share Accumulated Total
Capital deposit loses
money
RAupees 000
Balance as at July 1, 2010 1,989,000 - (493,920) 1,465,080
Share deposit money received - 1,214,907 - 1,214,907
Shares issued 1,211,336  (1,211,3386)
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended June 30, 2011 - - 139,339 135,339
Balance as at July 1, 2011 3,200,338 3,571 (354,581) 2,848,328
Shares Issuad 237,885 (3,571) 234,294
Total comprehensive loss for the year
ended June 30, 2012 - - (86,083) (86,083)
Balance as at June 30, 2012 3,438,201 - {440,664) 2,987,537

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

QolsE Vs TR

Chairman Chief BExacutive Officer Chiaf Financial Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year snded 30 June 2012

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on May 30, 2005 as a public limited company under the Com-
panies Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the Company is situated at Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T. Khan
Road, Karachi.

The Company Is setting up a cold rolling mill complex In the Downstream Industrial Estate, Pakistan Steel, Bin
Qasim, Karachi. The production capacity of the plant is 220,000 mefric tons. The Plant is near completion and
trial production commenced from the month of April 2012. Commercial production date is expected in first
quarter of the financial year ending June 30, 2013.

In June 2012 an offer for sale of shanes was made by Metal Ona Corporation, Japan, Arif Hablb Equity (Private)
Limited and Mr. Haslb Rehman, the existing sponsors of Alsha Stesl Mills Limited. The princlpal purpose of
the offer for sale of shares was to list the Comparny on the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE). The subscription
of these shares was made on 3rd and 4th July 2012. After the fulfilment of other formalities relating to listing,
trading of Compamy’s shares in KSE started on 6th August 2012. Therefore, as at June 30, 2012 the Company’s
legal status was that of an unquoted company. However, for the purpose of better disclosures the Company
have voluriarily follow Forth Schadule of Companies Ordinance, 1984 in the preparation ¢f these financial
statesmants.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

Thess flnanclal statamants have been prapared In accordance with approved accounting standards as ap-
plicabla in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFASs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case require-
menits differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
ceriain critical accounting estimates. it also requires management to exarcise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accouniing policies. The matter imvolving a higher degree of judgment or compleity,
or area where assumpfions and estimates are significant to the financial statements is deferred taxation which
is dependent cn future profitability of the Company.

Critcal accounting estimates and Judgements

There have been no criical judgments made by the Company's nﬂnagan'rant in applying the accourting poli-
cies that would have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

New and amended standerds adopted by the Company

There are no IFRSs or Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretation Committes (IFRIC) interpretations that
are efiective for the first ime for the financial year beginning on or after July 1, 2011 that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Company.

New standards, Inferpreiations and amandmenis to published approved accounting standerds that
are considared relavant, but not yat effective

Following amendments to existing standards and interpretations have been publishad that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on the dates mentioned below:

% AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

IAS 18 (Amendment) - Emplovee benefits’ is applicable for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.1
eliminates the corridor approach and recognises all actuarial gains and losses in other comprehensive income
as they oceur, Immediataly recognisas all past servica costs and replaces Interest cost and axpected ratum on
plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability / asset. The change is not expected to have any material sffect on the Gompany.

IAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of Financial Staternents’, is effective for the accounting periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2012. It entails the requirement for entiies fo group itams presertted in other comprehensive
Income on the basls of whethar thay are petertially reclassiflable to profit or loss subsequently (reclasslfication

adjustmants). The amendmasnt ks howawver, not expected to have a material Impact on the Company's financial
staternants.

24 There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a material Impact on the Company.

25 Basls of measursment

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless specifically dis-
closed in the accounting policies below.

26 Property, piant and squipment

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except capital work-in-
progress which is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account by applying straight-line method where by the cost less re-
sidual value is writtan off over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on acquisition is charged from the month of
addiion wheraas no depraclation Is charged In the month of disposal.

The Company accounts for impairment, where indication exist, by reducing its camrying value o the asssssed
recoverable amount

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improve-
mants are capltallsed and the assets so replaced, i any; are retired.

27 Intanglbles

Intangibles are staled at cost less amortisation. Carrying amounts of intangibles are subject to impairment
review at each balance sheet date and whera condilions exist, impairment is recognisad. Computer software
licansas ara caplialised on tha basls of cost Incumed 1o acquire and bring to usa tha speciiic software. These
costs are amortised over thelr estimated useful Ife using the stralght line method.

28 Stores and spares
Stores and sparas are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

29 Stock-Intrade

This is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
except for those in fransit where it represents invoice value and other charges thereon.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012
210 Taxation
Current

21

212

213

214

The charge for curment taxation is based on texable income at the current rates of texation after taking into ac-
count tax credits and rebates avallabla, If any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary diffsrences arising
between tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax
liabllity ls generally recognised for all taxabla temporary differences and dsfermed tax asset Is recognised to the
exdent that it is probable that futurs taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary dif-
ferences, unused iax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Borrowinge and their cost

Botrowings ana recognised Inflally at falr value and subsequently at amortisad cost using the effective Interast
method. Bormrowing costs are recognised as an expsnss In the perlod In which these ars Incurred except to the
exdent of bormowing costs that are dinectly atfributable to the acquisition, constuction or production of a qualify-
ing asset, which are assels that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
and are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the asseis are substantially ready for their intended
use. Such borrowing cosis are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Investmant Income eamed on the temporary Investment of spacific borrowings pending thelr expenditura on
qualifying asssts is deducted from the bomowing costs sligible for capitalisation.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the Company becomes a party to a derivative con-
tract and are subssquently re-measured at thelr falr value. The Company entets Into darivativa transactions
mainly to hedge foreign currency liabilities or firm commitments and thase are designated as fair value hedge.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives used as hedging instruments in hedging relationships that are desig-
natod and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit and loss account, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged liability thet are attributable as the hedged risk.

Finance |sase

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
finance leases. Assets on finance lease are capitalised at the commencement of the lease term at the lower
of the fair value of leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments, each determined at the
Incaption of the lsase. Each lease payment Is allocated batwaan the llabliity and finance cost 5o as to achlave
a constant rate of balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to profit and loss account and is included
under finance costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are camed at cost which ks the falr values of ths consideration to be pald for goods and
senvicas.

w AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

2.15  Foreign currencles

Trangactions in foreign cumrencies are recorded in rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those prevail-
ing at the date of ransaction. Monetary asssts and liabilities in foreign cumrencias are translated into rupees
using the exchange rates approximating thase prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are
takan to Income curranty.

The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's funclional and presenta-
tion currency.

2116 Financlal assets and llabillties
All financial asssts and liabiliies are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given

and received respectively. These financial assats and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amor-
fised cost or cost, as the case may be.

217  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are canled In the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash fiow state-
ment, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balancas with banks on cument, savings and deposit
accounts with three months maturity, and short-term running finance.

218  Siaff retirement beneflts - defined benefit pian

The company operatas an unfunded gratulty scheme for all lis permanent employees. The scheme defines an
amount of gratuity benefit that an employes will receivie on retirement subject to a minimum qualifying period of
service under the scheme. The amount of gratuity is dependant on years of service completed and last drawn
salary.

The liability recognised in respect of gratuity schema is the present value of the company's gratuity obligation
at the balance shest date lass adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gain or losses and unrecognised transl-
tional liability.

Traneitional liability arising from introduction of the scheme is amortised over a period of five years.

The gratuily obligation is calculated by indepondent actuary using projectad unit cradit method. The present
value of the gratulty obligation Is detarmined by discounting the estimated fulure cash outflows using Interast

rates of high quality government securities and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related gratuity liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustrments and changes in aciuarial assumptions in ex-
cess of the 10% of the gratuity obligation are charged or creditad to profit and loss account over the employess’
aexpacted average remalning workdng Ives.

219  Interest income
Return on bank deposits is recognised on accrual basis.

220 ljarah
In ijarah transactions significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lassor. Islamic

Financial Accounting Standard 2 - ‘ljrah’ requires the recognition of ‘ujrah payments’ (lease rentals) against
ijarah financing as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the ijarah term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2011
Note Rupees ‘000
3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets 3.1 270,155 252112
Capital work in progress - at cost 32 9,221,498 6,674,939
9,491,653 6,927,051
a1 Operating asssts
Leasshold  Office Fumniture Motor vehicles TOTAL
land equipments end fodures owned  Held under
finznce leases
Rupees D00
Net carrying value basle
Yeouar ended Juna 30, 2012
Opening net book valus (NBV) 234,642 7107 4,180 342 5,841 252,112
Additions (2t cost) - 15,351 3,543 = 13070 31,984
Disposals (at NBV) - {110} - (110} - {220)
Dapraclation charge (4,165) (3,213) (1,342) (182} (4,088) (13,701)
Closing net book value (NBV) 230477 18,435 6,381 50 14812 270,155
Gross carrying value besls
Al June 30, 2012
Cost 249,915 28,035 10,389 1512 23,356 313,211
Accurnulated depreciation (194238) (08D4)  (4008) (1462)  (8,544) (43058)
Net book value (NBY) 230477 18435 6,381 50 14812 270,155
Net carrying valus basis
Yoar ended Juna 30, 2011
Opening net book value (NBY) 238,807 4,504 1,180 809 7978 253078
Addiions (at cost) - 6,038 4,530 . - 10568
Disposals (at NBV) # (25) - - - (25)
Depreclation charge {4,165) {3.410) {1,530) (267) {2137y  {11,509)
Cloaing net book valus (NBV) 234,842 7,107 4,180 342 55841 252,112
Gross carrying value basls
At June 30, 2011
Cost 249,915 12,919 6,846 2,701 10,286 282,667
Accumulated depreciation {15,273) (5,812) {2,666) (2,359) {4.4458)  (30,555)
Net book valua (NBY) 234,842 7,107 4,180 342 5841 252,112
Useful Ives In years 80 3tes 5 5 5

m AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

212 2011
Rupees ‘000
32 Capital work in progress
Chl works and prefabricated bullding 807,711 595,762
Plant and machinery 5,134,568 4.211,448
Electrical works 554,521 141,581
Advancss to suppllers
= eivil works 10,625 36,542
- plant and machinery 2742 131,365
- lecirical works 115 74,765
Bomowing costs - note 3.2.1 &£3.2.2 2,033,883 1,164,846
Others - note 3.2.3 677,323 318,630
_ 9271488 6874930

3.21 The rate used to determine the amount of borowing costs sligble for capitallsation rangas from 2% above six
months KIBOR to 3.28% above six months KIBOR (June 30, 2011: 2% abowve six months KIBOR to 4% above
six months KIBOR).

3.22  Mark-up on loan from related party capitalised during the yaar amounts to Rs 8.91 milllon {June 30, 2011: Rs.
2.06 million).

3.23 Thisincludes raw matarial amounting to Rs. 168.54 million (2011: As. nil) issued during the year for trial produc-

tion.
202 2011
Rupees 000
4, INTANGIBLES
Computer Software - note 4.1 & 4.2 357 469
Intangible asset under development - note 4.3 10,986 -
11,343 469
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

4.1

42
43

8.1

52

53

2012 2011
Rupees ‘000

Computer Software
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 1,257 1,108

Accumulated amortisation {800) (630)
Net book value ___ 357 _ &
Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value 489 538

Addticns during the year 149 272

Amortisation for the year (261) (341)
Closing net book value ____ %7 4

Amortisation Is changed at the rate of 33.33% (June 30, 2011: 33.33%) par annum.

This represents license and support server fee for the implementation of SAP Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) Systern Solution.

2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
LONG-TERM LOANS - consldered good
= opening balances 2,899 -
- disbursemants 1,133 2,839
4,032 2,800

All the loans have been given o executives of the Compariy. There have been no repayments during the current
yedr.

Loans to employees have been provided to faclitate purchase of vehicles In accordance with tha Company's
policy and are rapayable after a period of four to five years. Loans to employees are interest free.

The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs
4.03 million (June 30, 2011: Rs 2.9 million).

62 AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012
212 2011
Rupees 000
6. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Sacurity deposits
- Energy, power and fuel secior 34,196 33,484
- Financial Institutions, banking and leasing companies 2842 3577
- Hotels and clubs 2,000 2,000
- Steel sactor 1,298 1,259
- COthers 1,309 1,421
41646 o oaze
Prepaymants
- Energy, power and fuel secior 5,988 8521
47834 ___ 48312
7. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax asset has been recognised on accumulated losses of the Company, which will be claimed as
pre-commencement expenditure, in five years from the date of commencement of commercial production. it
is eppectad that future profits will be available against which the expenditure will be utilised.

2012 2011
Rupees 000
8. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Advances - considered good
- exacufives 1,536 1,196
- other employees 1,434 198
- suppliers and others - note 8.1 15,375 3412
Advances to suppliers - considered doubtful - 637
Deposits 1,208 -
Prepayments 741 2236
Provision for doubtful advances to supplier 20’291 7
___ 20294 702

8.1 This includes Re 0.88 million given to related parties.
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
8. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Rsesivable from Etimaad Englnesring
{Privata) Limited - note 9.1 138,485 237,855
Others - note 92 369 33
138,854 238,186

9.1 This reprasants balance of advances given to civil contractor Eltmaad Enginsering (Pvt) Limited {Eltmaad)
for mobilisation and procurements. The Company awardaed this confract to Eitmaad on December 1, 2007 for
certain civil, mechanical and electrical works. However, Eitmaad did not complete the work and discontinued
the contract Out of the total culstanding book balance of Rs 237.86 million the Company during the year has
recovered Rs 99.37 million from Etimaad on January 5, 2012 through encashment of its advance payment
bank guarantee which was taken at the time of award of contract.

At prasent the Company Is In dispute with the contractor In respact of the outstanding balance of advances.
Initially Etmaad had filed a winding up petition against the Company in the Sindh High Court alleging that the
Company has failed to clear its unpaid invoices of Rs.230 million with 30 days of the Demand Notice which
stands due and payable according fo the petitioner. Whereas to the contrary a sum of Rs 237 million, before
recovery of aforesaid amount, was receivable from the petitioner as per books of accounts of the Company.
However, for an early resolution of this dspute the Company had flled a Sult bafore the Sindh High Court
for appolntment of an Arbitrator In terms of the contract and ws 20 of Arbltration Act, 1940, for resolution of
the disputa/differance bstween the parties upon their raspactive claims to ba submitted before the Arbitrator.
Accordingly, the Honorable High Court upheld the Company's contention and disposed of the said Suit and the
matter was referred to be resolved through Arbitrator appointed by consent of both parties.

Subsequent to balance sheet date the arbitration proceedings have initiated in which the Company has filed
a claim for recovery of the aforesald over paymenis made to Etlmaad alongwith consequentlal damages
aggregating to sum of Rs.1,109 million together with markup at the KIBOR notified by the State Bank of
Pakistan from the date the amount became payable till the same is realized. A further sum of Rs.20 million
has also been claimed in lieu of costs. The above claim is net of Rs.99.37 million which have already been
recoverad from Etimaad. Etimaad has made a capricious counterclaim of Rs.820 million which is a mere retort
1o Aisha Steel Mills Limited's bona fide claim. Currantly the sole arbitrator is reviewing the submitted claims of
both parties.

The Company, based on legal advice, considers that it has a good on merits and there is no likelihood of
unfavourable outcome or any potential loss on account of the above litigations. Accordingly the Company has
made ne provision in this respect.

8.2 This Includas Rs 313 thousand (June 30, 2011: Rs 313 thousand) recelvable from Metal One Comporation -
Japan, a related party.
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10.

10.1

11.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks on
- Current accounis

- PLS savings accounts - note 10.1

Caszh in hand

3,913

33,358
12

37,283

2011

Rupees ‘000

840
837,567
133
835,640

At June 30, 2012 the rates of mark up on PLS savings accounts ranged from 5% to 10.5% per annum (June

30, 2011: 5% 1o 12%).

Ordinary Sharas of Rs 10 each
Cumulative Preference Sharas
of Rs 10 each

Shares issued of Rs 10 each
fully pald In cash - nota 11.1

Shares issued of Rs 10 each
fully paid in cash - note 11.2

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
2012 2011
{Number of shares}
450,000,000 250,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
550,000,000 350,000,000
lssued, subsacribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares
2012 2011
{Number of shares}
268,000,000 244,570,612
268,000,000 244,570,612
Cumulative Preference Shares
2012 2011
{Number of sharas)
75,820,058 75,463,000
75,820,058 75,463,000

4,500,000
1,000,000

5,500,000

2,680,000

2011
Rupees ‘000

2,500,000

1,000,000
8,500,000

2,445,708

754,630
3,200,336
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111

112

113

114

115

22 2011
(Number of shares)

The reconciliation of ordinary shares is as follows:

Opening balance 244,570,612 198,900,000
Add: Shares issued during the year 23,429,388 45670612
Closing balance 268,000,000 244570612
The reconciliation of cumulative preferance shares is as follows:

Opening balance 75,483,000 -
Add: Shares issued during the year 357,058 75,463,000
Closing balance _ 75820058 _ 75,463,000

As at June 30, 2012 34,570,058 Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs 10 each are held by Arf Habib
Corporation Limited (2011: 75,483,000 Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each). During the yeer Arif
Habib Comporation Limited declared specle dividend of Company's 41,250,000 Cumulative Preference Shares
of Rs 10 seach and thersfore now held by sharsholders of Arlf Hablh Corporation Limited. Voting rights of
preference shareholdsrs are equivalent to the voting rights of Ordinary Shareholders.

The rate of dividend on 75,820,058 Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs 10 each is 3% above six months
KIBOR {raset every six months) which shall be corverted into Ordinary Shares / Preforence Shares for which
the CGompany shall issue the appropriata number of Ordinary Shares.

Preference Shares are non-redeemable but convertible into Ordinary Shares at face value at any ime after
Commercial Operation Date as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. The conversion
price shall be Rs 10 per Ordinary Share and for the purpose of conversion accumulated dividend not paid to
the Preference Sharsholders, if any accrusd upto the date of announcement of corversion by the Company
shall be taken into account for datermining the number of the Ordinary Shares o be issusd upon corversion
and therefors the number of Ordinary Shares to ba Issued to the Preference Shareholders shall be based In
the ratio 1:1, plus unpaid preferential dividends, if any.

Dividend is only payable when Company has accumulated profits. Therefore, cumulative dividend on Preference
Shares amounting to Rs 188.56 million is not accounted for in these financial statements.

During the yaar, tha Company offared Ordinary Share of Rs 10 sach as right share 1o existing sharsholders
amounting to Rs 305 million (30.5 million Ordinary Shares). The shares were declined by the existing
sharsholdsr and wers offsred to cerlain Pre-IPO imvestors. Out of folal offer of 30.5 million shares, 23,429,388
shares amounting to As 234 million have been subscribed and are fully paid in cash.
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
12, LONG-TERM FINANCE — SECURED
Syndlcate Term Finance from banks
and financial institutions
- Facility 1 - note 12.1 3,000,031 3,000,031
- Facility 2 - note 12.2 1,075,351 584,881
- Facility 3 - note 12.3 866,650 -
Murabaha finance from a bank and
a financial instifution - note 12.4 1,000,000 1,000,000
5, 4,984,912

Less: Current maturity shown under
current liabilities (30,000) -
~ 5512032 ~ 4884912

121 This represants term finance obtalned from varlous banks and a financlal Institution under a syndicated term
finance agresment of Rs 3 billion. It is repayable in 11 consecutive semi-annual installments from April 2013
fo April 2018. The term finance carries mark up ranging from 2% above six months KIBOR to 3.28% above
six months KIBOR (June 30, 2011: 2% above six months KIBOR to 3.28% above six months KIBOR) to be
determined on semi-annueal basis. it is secured against first charge on all present and future Compary’s fixed
assets, accounts recelvables, Interest In any Insurance claim and equliable morigage over land and bullding.

122  This represents term finance obtained from various banks and a financial insfitution under a syndicated term
finance agreement of Rs 1.08 billion. K is repayable in 10 equal consecutive semi-annual installments from
August 2013 to February 2018. The term finance carries mark up at the rate of 3.26% above six months KIBOR
{June 30, 2011: 3.25% above sk months KIBOR) to be determined on semi-annual basis. It is sacured against
first charge on all present and future Company’s fbed assets, accounts receivables, interest in any insurance
clalm and squitabla mortgage over land and bullding.

123  This represents term finance obtained from various banks and a financial institution under a syndicated term
finance agreement of Rs 866.7 million including Re 16.7 million from Asif Habib Corporation Limited - a related
party. It is repayabls in 10 equal consecutive semi-annual instaliments from December 2013 fo June 2018.The
torm finance carries mark up at the rate of 3.25% above six months KIBOR fo be determined on semi-annual
basls. it Is sscurad agalnst first charge on all present and future Company's fbed assets, accounts recelvables,
interast in any insurancea claim and equitable morigage over land and building.

124  This represents murabaha finance obtained under murabaha finance agreement with a bank and a financial
institution of Ra 1 billion. it is repayable in 11 consecutive semi-annual installments from April 2013 to April
2018.The term finance carries mark up ranging from 2% above six months KIBOR to 3.28% above six months
KIBOR (June 30, 2011: 2% above six months KIBOR to 3.28% abaove sik months KIBOR) to be determined on
semi-annual basis. It is secured against first charge on all present and future Company’s fixed assets, accounts
receivables, interast in any insuranca claim and squitable morigage over land and building.

125  Out of the tolal unutilised finance facilities Company has letter of credit and guarantee commitments amounting
to As 5.03 million end Rs 116.45 million (Juns 30, 2011: Rs 65.4 million and Rs 33.05 million) respectively.
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
13. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT
TO FINANCE LEASES
Payabile during:
201112 - 2772
2012-13 6,586 3205
2013-14 4587 1,254
2014-15 4.604 1,167
2015-16 2,662 -
Minimum Lease payments - note 13.1 18,439 8398
Less: Finance charges not due 3,385 1,766
15,054 86812
Less: Current portion shown under
curent liabilities 3,679 1,907
11,375 4,705
Present value of finance lease liabiliies
Not later than one year 3,672 1,907
Latar than one year and not latar than 5 ysars 11375 4,705
15,054 6,612

131  These represent liebilities for vehicles acquired on lease. Finance charge ranging from 10.89% to 20.30%
{(June 30, 2011: 11.81% to 17.70%) per annum have been used as discounting factor.

2012 201
Rupees '000

14. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT - Gratulty

141  Movement In obligation
Opening balance 2,771 -
Charge for the year 5,685 3,598
Benefits paid (2,341) (827)
Closing balance 6,185 2771

142  Movement In the defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 5,576 -
Transitional liability - 2830
Service cost 4,361 2802
Intarest cost 748 410
Actuaral (galn) / loss (1.806) 481
Benefits pald (2,341) (827)
Ciesing balance 6,538 5,576

& AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012
2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
143  Balance sheet reconclliation as at June 30
Present valua of cbligation 6,538 5,576
Unrecognised actuarial loss 1,345 {(461)
Unrecognised transiticnal liability {1,758) (2,344)
6,125 2,77
144  Charge for the year =
Sarvice cost 4361 2,602
Interast cost 748 410
Recognition of transitional liability 586 586
5,805 3,598
145 Key actuarial assumptions used are as follows: T ] -
Expocted rate of increase in salaries 12% 13%
Discount factor used 13% 14%
Retirement age (years) (1] 60
146  As per actuarial advice, the expected charge for the year 2013 is Rs 8.34 million.
147  The information in note 14 is based on actuarial valugation.

18.

151

16.

2012 2011
Rupsss ‘000
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Craditors 68,184 23,051
Bills payable - note 15.1 450.508 -
Accrued liablities 11,819 10,507
Retention money 51,557 5,723
Security deposit - cum - advance from dealers 9,000 -

Texes deducted at source and payable o
statutory authorities 853 1,350
592,131 40,631

This includes Rs 383.12 miillion payable to Matal One Corporation - a related party under 120 days usance
letter of credit

ACCRUED MARK-UP

This raprasents mark-up payable of Rs 595.84 milion and Rs 68.3 milllon In respect of Syndicate Tarm Finance
Facility 1 and 3 raspactively.

Marl-up of Rs 595.64 million payable on Syndicate Term Finance Facility 1 was due for payment on April 23,
2012. Subsequent to balance sheet date the Company has oblained additional financing facility of Rs 580
million from syndicate banks and paid the mark-up. This facility is principally secured by pari passu over fixed
assets with 25% margin coupled with additional security of pledge of sharas from sharsholders of the Company
namely, Arif Hablb Corporation Limited, Arif Hablb Equity (Private) Limited, Matal One Corporation - Japan and
Mr. Hasb Rehman.
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
17. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Short-term bormowing - 100,000
Short-tarm running finance - note 17.1 520,388 -
528,386 100,000

17.1  This represents finance arranged on mark-up with various banks. Faciliies for running finance available from
thase banks amount to Rs 1 billion. The ratas of mark-up range between 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% to 3 months
KIBOR + 3% (2011: nll). The balance Is securad agalnst ranking hypothacation charge over plant, machinery
and aquipment.

18. CONTINGENCGIES AND COMMITMENTS

181 CONTINGENCIES

18.1.1 The matter relating to dispute with Eimaad Englnesring (Private) Limited Is explained In note 9.1.

18.1.2 Contingency relating to an invoice raised by Universal Metal Corporation - a related parly, amounting to Rs
24.05 million (2011: 21.88 million) against consultancy services which had to be provided to the Company in
relation to the Comparny’s project, has not been recognised pending verification, by its technical team, of the
services delivered to the Company.

182 COMMITMENTS

1821 Commitments for capital expenditure outstanding as at June 30, 2012 amounted to Rs 450.50 million (June
30, 2011: Rs 826.78 million).

1822 Commitments for rantals under llarah armangements amounted to Rs 1.38 million (2011: nil) payable as

follows:
2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
Not later than 1 year 377 -
Later than 1 yaar but not later than 5 years 1,004 -
1,381 -

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Thess financial stataments do not include disclosure relating to IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ as Company

has not commenced lts commercial production as at June 30, 2012 and Information related to revenue ks
therefore not available for its reporting segments.
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201

21.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and bansfits
Rent, rates and taxes

Staff training and development
Depreciation / amortisation
Repairs and maintenance
Traveliing and entertainment
Communication

Legal and professional charges
Managerial and advisory fee
Audiitors' remuneration - note 20.1
Listing fee

Security charges

Others

Audhtors’ remuneration

Audit fes
Fee for half year audit and other ceriifications
Out-of-pockst expenses

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Incoma from finencial agsets

Return on PLS savings accounts
Return on funds placed under repo arrangement
Retumn on term deposits

Income from non-financial assats

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Scrap sales
Others
Provision for doubtiul advances written back
Liabliies no longer requirad written back

FINANCE COST

Guarantee commigsion
Finance lease charges
Exchange loss

Bank and other charges

12,478
7511

1,186

23,722
7,896
6,081

37,708

=
|-
q

ang

1,878

g8h

__ 14857

2011
Rupees ‘000

20,528
31,124

8,380
60,032
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
23. TAX RECONCILIATION
Accounting loss before fax (132,435) (51,580)
Tax at applicable tax rate of 35% 46,352 18,057
Tax effect of prior periods - 172,872
Tax for the year - recognition of deferred tax
on loss carried forward 48,352 180,820
24. (LOSS)/ EARNING PER SHARE
(Loss) / profit after taxation atiributable to
ordinary shareholders (86,083) 139,339
Adjustment for cumulative preference share dividend 119,782 46,779

(Loss) / profit after taxation for calculation of basle
eamings per share (205,885) 92,560

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding at the end of the yaar (In thousand)
Ordinary shares In Issua 249,706 239,065
Basic (loss) / eaming per share - Rupee {0.82) 0.39

24.1 A diluted samings per share has not bean presentad as it had anti-dilutive effact on the eamings per share.
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2012 2011
Rupees ‘000
25. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN)
OPERATIONS
Loss befora taxation {132,435) {51,590)
Add / (Less): Adjustments for non-cash
charges and other items
Depraciation / amortisation 13,962 11,850
Finance leass charges 2,259 1,068
Provision for staff refirement benefits 5,685 3,588
Retumn on PLS savings accounts {23,722) (20,528)
Return on funds placed undar repo arrangement {7,806) (31,124)
Retum on term deposits {6,091) (8,380)
(Gain) / loss on disposal of fxed assets (17) 25
{15,810) {43,491)
Loss before working capital changes {148,245) (95,081)
Effact on cash flow due to workdng capital changes
{Increase) / Decreass in currant assots
Stores and spares (44,851) {433)
Stock-in-trade - raw material {489,519) -
Advances, deposit and prepayments (13,252) 12,256
Cther recaivables 88,332 145
Tex refunds due from Government - Sales tax {263,606) (21,317)
(711,986) (9,349)
Incraase / (Decrease) in curment liabiliies
Trade and other payables 551,500 {1,353)
Current maturity of long-term loan 30,000 -
__{130,486) {(10,702)
Cash used in operations __(278,731) (105,783)
26, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 37,283 638,540
Short-tarm borrowings - running finance under
mark-up arangements (529,3886) -
{492,103) 933,540
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2012 2011
Rupees '000
27. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - DIRECT METHOD
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash paid to suppliars / service providers
and employees (278,731) {105,783)
Income tax paid (28,315) (3,145)
Mark-up on loans pald (495,898) (802,968)
Returmn on bank deposits received 38,874 59,148
Staff retirernent benefits paid (2,341) 827)
Increase In long-term amployes loans (1,133) (2,899)
Decrease / (increasa) in long-tarm deposits
and prepsyments® 678 (518)
Net cash used in operating activities (777,868) (658,993)
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {1,708,476) (941,773)
Acquisition of intangible assets (11,135) (272)
Sale proceeds on disposal of property,
plart and equipment 237 -
Net cash used in investing activities {1.720,374) {942,045)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share capital issued 234294 1,211,336
Share deposit monay received - 3,571
Long-term finance obtained 827,120 1,225,799
Settlemnent of shori-term finance (100,000) {10,000)
Increase / (decreasa) in liabilities against assets
subject to finance leases 8,183 {2,745)
Net cash inflow from financing aclivities 1,067,557 2,427 961
Net (decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents {1,430,643) 828,823
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 838,540 109,617
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - note 26 (492,103) 38,540
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28.2

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2012 2011
Rupees '000
Disclosure of fransactions with related parties during the year were as follows:
Relationship Nafure of Transaction
Associated companies: - Purchase of construction materials 20,853 21,153
- Purchage of raw material 579,884 -
= Consultancy charges paid - 3318
- Managerial and advisory fee 3,191 12,807
- Share capital issued 3,571 1,211,336
- Share deposit money received - 3571
- Re-imbursement of expenses - 640
- Recovery of expenses 744 855
Other ralated partias: - Rent axpense - 85
- Agvancss given 877 -
Key management
Compansation - Salariss and other short-larm
employes benefits 16,608 14,639
- Post retiremant benefits 800 1,540

- Director - non axeculive payment on
account of fuel and rented vehicle 267 -

The status of outstanding balances with related parties as at June 30, 2012 is included in the respeciive notes
to the financial statemeants.

REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration to the Chief Executive Officer,
Director and Exacutives of the Comparyy are as follows:

Chisf Bacutive Executive Director Exacutives
202 2011 2012 2011 202 2011
Rupees 000

Managerial remuneration 11,284 6,600 4,261 3,882 45,936 36478
Retirement benefits é16 805 285 735 5,088 1,367
Ralmbursabla axpanses 1,025 633 1,180 2514 3503 1,012
Club subseription 148 41 130 34 282 42
Others - B35 - - 4,004 541

13,072 2,014 5,856 7,185 56,793 38,480
Number of persona 2 1 1 1 7B 35
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In addition to the above, the Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director and certain Executives are also provided
with the Company maintained vehicles, security guards, mobile phone, hospitalisation and life insurance in

accordance with the Company’s policy.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
30.1 Financial risk factors
The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks: market risk {(including currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on having
cost effective funding during the plant erection phase.
30.2 Financlal assets and llabliitias by category and thelr respective maturities
Intarost baaring Non-intersst baaring Tolal
Matulty  “Maturly Totnl Waturlly  “Matrity Total
up o one afisr one up o one aftar one
year yesr yoar year
FINANGIAL ASSETS
Losns and receivebles
; - 1,208 aa000 B4,500 84,500
Loans 1o empioyaes S % 4,032 4,032 4,032
Othar recchablon - 138,854 - 138,864 138,864
Accrued mar-up - - 424 424 a24
Cash and berk belences 33,358 33,368 3,625 2,895 97.283
22 3,350 35,558 T4 411 ]
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At amortisod cost
finanes 0000 591203  5ada0m 5040002
Short-term finance 629,306 5 520,358 629,396
Lishiitles ngainst asests
subject 1o finance leases 3679 11,375 15,054 % . 15,054
Trade andd olher payalkics - - - 582,191 692,131 682,191
2012 663,066 GO2aA07  6AB6A72 1468940 1456010 _ 7.48412
On belancs sheat dats gap
2012 (S2B,707) (58204077 (BAS3114)  (1,312529) 87,324 (1,225208) (7E7B219)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Losna and recelvables
) . i & 41,71 4,781 41,701
Loans 10 empioyees - 4 - 2,880 2,309 2,309
Oy ecobeblon A " 231,188 i 238,188 238,188
Accrued mankup . - 1,580 . 1,589 1,589
Cash and bank balancos 837,567 937,567 873 - 73 838,540
M1 TRE - W Mol Wm0 IBAm 1208
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
At amortised cost
Long-erm finance - 4884912 4984912 4,984,912
Shortism finence 100,000 i 100,000 100,000
Lishilties against asacts -
subjact to financo lesos 1,907 4,706 ag12 - - 8812
Trade and other payables - - - 40,831 40,831 40,831
Accrued mark-up 491,580 421,860 401 060
2011 101907 4909517 5091524 522,291 532201 5823815
On balancs shest date gap
2011 835,880 (4.980817) (4163967)  (291.643) 44500  (24B853)  (4.400.810)
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a) Mariet Risk
L Irrtercat rate risk

Interast rate risk is the rislc that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate duse to changes in the market
Interest rates. As par markst practicas Company botrowings are on variable Intarest rate exposing company to
interest rate risk.

At June 30, 2012, the Company have variable interest bearing financial liabilities of Rs 6.49 billion (2011: 5.08
billion), and had the interest rate varied by 200 basis points with all the other variables held constant, loss before
tax for the year would have been approxdimately Rs 0.3 million (2011: 0.13 million} higher / lower, mainlty as a
result of higher / lower Interest expanse on floating rate bomowings.

. Forelgn exchange risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where payables and receivables exdst due to transactions in foreign curren-
cies. At June 30, 2012 trade and other payables exposed to foreign currency risk amount to Rs 14.02 million
{Juna 30, 2011: Rs 16.26 millllon). Further, as atbalanca shest date, tha Company has capltal commitments of
Rs nll {June 30, 2011: Rs 150.64 milllon) and exposure against opsen letters of credit of Rs 4.61 millen {June
30, 2011: As 65.4 million) denominated in foreign curancies.

As at June 30, 2012, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 20% against Japanese Yen with
all other variablas held constant, loss befora tax for the year would heve been lower / higher by Rs. 2.82 million
(2011: Rs. 3.056 milllon) malnly as a result of forelgn escchange losses / galns on transiation of Japanese Yen
denominated as financlal assets or a llabllities.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting dafa if countarparties failed
to perform as contracted. The maximum axposure 1o credit risk is equal to the camying amount of financial
assets. Qut of the total financlal asssts of Rs 223.45 million (June 30, 2011: Rs 1.22 bllllon) the financial assets
exposed to the credit risk amounts to Rs 223.44 million (June 30, 2011: Rs 1.22 billion). The camnying values of
financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

2012 2011
Rupees 000
Deposits 84,500 41,71
Other recelvables 3ss a3
Loans fo smployses 4,032 2,809
Accrued mark-u 424 1,569
Cash and Bank balances 37,283 938,540
26,608 985,150

Deposlits are not exposed to any material credit risk as deposlts of Rs 33 millien (June 30, 2011: Rs 33 milllon)
are maintained with the Karachi Electric Supply Company Limited (KESC). The other balances are also depos-
ited with credit worthy parties.

Total other raceivables include an amount of Rs 138.5 million (2011: Re 237.9 million) receivable from Etimaad
Engineering (Privaie) Limited, which is past due and is considered good.

Loans to employees are not exposed to any matsrial credit risk since thess are secured against motor vehicles
for which these were granted.

Bank balances and accrued mark-up thereon represent low credit risk as they are placed with banks having
good cradit ratings assigned by credit rati cias.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company manages
liquidity risk through equity contributions by the shareholders and availability of financing through banking and
non-banking arangements.

d) Falr values of the financlal Instruments

The carrying value of all the financial instruments reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

3. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to confinue as a
going concemn in order to provide refums for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to malntaln an appropriate mix between varlous sources of finance to minimise risk.

The debt to capital ratios at June 30, 2012 and at June 30, 2011 were as follows:

2012 2011
Rupsss ‘000
Total borrowings 6,471,418 5,084,912
Cash and bank - note 10 (37,283) (838,540)
Net dabt 6,434,135 4,148,372
Equity 2,097,537 2,849,326
Total capital 9,431,672 6,995,698
Debt to capital ratio 0.68 0.59

32 CAPACITY
The production capacity of the plant is 220,000 metric tons.
33. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISBUE

These financlal stataments were approved and authorised for lssue by the Board of Diractors of the Compary
on September 29, 2012.

Qo i T

Chalman Chief Exacuitive Officer Chief Financial Offlcer
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Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012

Ordinary Shares
# Of Shareholders Shareholdings’ Siab
1 295001 to 300000
1 995001 to 1000000
1 18995001 to 2000000
ik 2125001 to 2130000
1 2995001 to 3000000
1 4995001 to 5000000
1 5805001 to 5810000
1 9995001 ta 10000000
ik 10750001 to 10755000
1 16365001 to 16370000
5 26640001 to 26645000
ik 35275001 to 35280000
1 69610001 to 69615000
1 80005001 to 80010000
14

Total Shares Held

300,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,129,388
3,000,000
5,000,000
5,910,000

10,000,000
10,752,000
16,365,171
26,642,829
35,277,362
69,615,000
80,008,250

Shareholding %

0.11%
0.37%
0.75%
0.79%
1.12%
1.87%
2.21%
3.73%
4.01%
6.11%
9.94%
13.16%
25.98%
29.85%
~ 100.00%

Annual Report 2012 79




Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012
Ordinary Shares

Description Number of Shareholders Number of shares held Holding %

Directors, Chief Executive, 1 16,365,171 6.11
and their spouses and minor children

Executives - - -

Assoclated Companles, Undertakings 6 228,205,441 85.15
and Related parties

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, 3 17,129,388 6.39
Non-Banking Financial institutions

General Publle - Local - - -

General Public - Foreign = - -

Others 4 6,300,000 2.35

TOTAL i4 268,000,000 100.00

Shareholders holding 5% or More Voting Interest

Arif Habib Corporation Limited 80,008,250 29.85
Metal one Corporation, Japan 69,615,000 25.98
Universal Metal Corporation, Japan 37,394,829 13.95
Arif Habib Equity (Pvt) Limited 35,277,362 13.16
Mr. Hasib Rehman 16,365.171 6.11

m AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED




Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012

Ordinary Shares

S.No. Name of shareholder

Directors, Chlef Exacutive Officers and their
Spouses and minor children

1 Mr. Hasib Rehman

Associated Companiles, Undertakings and Related Partlos

Universal Metal Corporation, Japan
Metal One Corporation

Arif Habib Corporation Limited

Arif Habib Equity {Pvt) Limited
UMC Pakistan (Pvt) Limited

g b W N

NIL

Banks, Development Financlal Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions

1 Natlonal Bank OT Pakistan

2 Sindh Bank Limited

NIT and ICP
i Natlonal Bank Of Paklstan - Trustee
Department NI{U)T Fund

Murtual Fund
i CDGC - Trustee PICIC Investment Fund

2 CDC - Trustee PICIC Growth Fund

S CDC - Trustee NIT-Equity Market Opportunity Fund
4 CDC - Trustes ABL Stock Fund

TOTAL

No. of Sharehclders No.of shares held Holding %
16,365,171 8.11
1 16,365,171 6.11
1 37,394,829 13.95
1 69,615,000 2598
1 80,008,250 29.85
1 35,277,362 13.16
1 5,810,000 221
5 228,205,441 85.15
1 10,000,000 3.73
1 5,000,000 1.87
2 15,000,000 5.60
1 2,129,388 0.79
1 2,129,388 0.79
5t 2,000,000 0.75
1 3,000,000 112
i 1,000,000 0.37
i 300,000 011
4 6,300,000 2,35
i3 268,000,000 100.00
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Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012
Preference Shares

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held Shareholding %
3242 i 1o 100 131,942 017%
2439 101 1o 500 564,379 0.74%

551 501 to 1000 401,032 0.53%
663 1001 to 5000 1,477,495 1.95%
107 5001 to 10000 813,091 1.07%
48 10001 io 15000 597,488 0.79%
18 15001 1o 20000 332,745 0.44%
15 20001 to 25000 335,128 0.44%
7 25001 to 30000 158,580 0.26%

7 30001 to 35000 222,967 0.29%

2 35001 to 40000 77,444 0.10%

B 40001 1o 45000 213,759 0.28%

b 45001 1o 50000 241,495 0.32%

2 50001 to 55000 105,447 0.14%

1 55001 to 60000 58,000 0.08%

1 60001 to 65000 860,500 0.08%

8 65001 to 70000 339,816 0.45%

2 70001 1o 75000 148,000 0.18%

2 75001 1o 80000 153,044 0.20%

i 80001 to 85000 80,310 0.11%

4 85001 to 80000 353,227 0.47%

2 90001 to 85000 186,337 0.25%

18 105001 to 110000 108,055 0.14%

1 110001 1o 115000 114,315 0.15%

3 120001 1o 125000 369,258 0.49%

<1 125001 1o 130000 130,000 0.17%

1 145001 to 150000 148,806 0.20%

1 150001 to 155000 152,627 0.20%

1 185001 1o 170000 168,288 0.22%

1 200001 1o 205000 202,500 0.27%

1 210001 1o 215000 212,022 0.28%

1 215001 to 220000 220,000 0.29%

1 235001 to 240000 235,338 0.31%

1 240001 to 245000 244,300 0.32%

1 245001 1o 250000 250,000 0.33%

1 255001 1o 260000 257,327 0.34%

i 405001 to 410000 403,950 0.54%

1 730001 to 735000 732,950 0.97%

1. 6405001 to 8410000 6,407,500 8.45%

18 23795001 to 23800000 23,797,542 31.39%

1 34570001 1o 34575000 34,570,058 45.59%
7,150 75,820,058 100.00%
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Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012
Preference Shares

Description Number of Shareholders Number of shares held Holding %

Directors, Chief Executive, 5 30,208,272 39.84
and their spouses and minor children

Executives ik 13 0.00

Associated Companies, Undertakings 1 34,570,058 45.59
and Related parties

Banks, Development Finance 16 1,132,743 1.49

Institutions, Non-Banking Financial institutions

General Public - Local 6,967 6,470,337 8.53
General Public - Foreign 14 909,419 1.20
Others 146 2,529,216 334
TOTAL 7,150 ~ 75,820,068 ~ 10000

Shareholders holding 5% or More Voting Interest

Arif Habib Corporation Limited 34,570,058 45.59
Mr. Arif Habib 23,797,542 31.39
Mrs. Zetun Arif 6,407,500 8.45

Annual Report 2012 83




Pattern of Shareholding Report as of June 30, 2012
Preference Shares

S.No. Name of shareholder No. of Sharsholders No.of sharea held Holding %
Direciors, Chief Executive Officers and their
Spouses and minor chikiren
1 Mr. Arlf Hablb 1 23,797,542 3139
2 Mr. Muhammad Ejaz 1 11 Q.00
3 Mr. Kashif Habib 1 3,208 0.00
4 Mr. Kashif Shah 1 11 0.00
& Mrs. Zetun Arf 1 6,407,500 845
5 30,208,272 39,84
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
1 Anif Habib Corporation Limited 1 34,570,058 45.59
5t 34,570,058 45.59
Exocutives
1 Mr. Tahir Iqbal 1 13 0.00
1 13 0.00
Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financlal Insthiutions
1 Innovative Investment Bank Limited 1 687 0.00
2 Prudentlal Stocks Fund Lid (03360) 1 1,850 0.00
3 Prudentall Discount & Guaraniee House Lt 1 13 0.00
& Faysal Bank Limited 1 200 0.00
5 Pak Libya Holding Compary (Pvt.) Limited 1 71,500 0.09
- Bank Alfalah Limited 1 1,240 0.00
7 Natlonal Bank of Pakistan i 250,000 0.33
a8 Natlonal Bank of Paklstan 1 23,699 0.03
9 Investforum (SMC-Pvt) Limited 1 1,673 0.00
10 MCB Bank Limited - Treasury 1 168,286 0.22
i1 Saudl Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. Ltd.- PMD 1 35,000 0.05
12 Summit Bank Limhed i 409,950 0.54
13 First Credit & Investment Bank Limited 1 5,500 0.01
14 Escorts Investment Bank Limited 1 49 0.00
15 Escorts Investment Bank Limited 1 42,088 0.06
15 1,011,535 133
NIT and ICP
1 National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Department NKU)T Fund T 121,208 0.16
1 121,208 0.16
Modarahas
1 First Equity Modaraba 1 1,443 0.00
2 First UDL Modaraba 1 11,000 0.01
3 First Al Noor Modarabs 1 275 0.00
3 12,718 0.02
Murtusl Funds
1 CDC - Trustee PICIC Investment Fund 1 130,000 0.17
2 CDC - Trustee PICIC Growth Fund 1 257,327 0.34
3 CDC - Trustes AKD Index Tracker Fund 1 2418 0.00
4 MC FSL - Trustee JS KSE-30 Index Fund 1 1,059 0.00
] CDC - Trustee NAFA Stock Fund i 550 0.00
[+] First Capital Mutual Fund Limited 1 9,500 0.01
7 CDC - Trustee PICIC Stock Fund 1 20,000 0.03
il 420,854 0.56
Othars 136 2,095,644 2.76
General Publlc
1 Forelgn 14 809,419 120
2 Local 8,967 8,470,337 8.53
TOTAL T.144 75,820,058 60,18
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Corporate Calendar of Major Events

Results
The Company follows the period of July 1 to June 30 as the Financial Year.

For the Financial Year ending on June 30, 2013, Financial Results will be announced as per the following tentative
schedule:

1st quarter ending September 30, 2012 Last week of October, 2012
2nd quarter ending December 31, 2012 Last week of January, 2013
3rd quarter ending March 31, 2013 Last week of April, 2013
Year ending June 30, 2013 Last week of July, 2013

Issuance of Annual Report

21 days before AGM i.e. on or before October 8, 2012.
8th Annual General Meeting

The 8th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Aisha Steel Mills Limited ("the Company”) will be held on
Wednesday, October 31, 2012 at 4:30 pm at the Beach Luxury Hotel, Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Road, Karachi.
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Form of Proxy
8th Annual General Meeting

The Company Secretary
Aisha Steel Mills Limited
Arlf Hablb Centre

23, M.T. Khan Road
Karachi.

I/ we of belng a member(s)
of Aisha Steel Mills Limited holding Ordinary/Preference

sharesasperCDCA/c.No._ hereby appoint Mr./Mrs../Miss

of (full address)
or failing him/her

Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full address)

(being member of the company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 31, 2012 and/or any

adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2012.

Witnesses:

1. Name: Signature on

Address : Rs. 5/-
CNIC No. : Revenue Stamp
Signature :

2. Name:

Address :
CNIC No. :
Signature :

NOTES:

1. A member entitied to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint ancther member as his / her
proxy who shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are
available tc 2 member.

2. Proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her identity by showing his/her original
passport and bring folio number at the time of attending the meeting

3. Inorder to be effective, the proxy Form must be received at the office of our Registrar M/s. Central
Depository Company of Pakistan, Share Registrar Department, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B,
S5.M.C.H.S, Main Shahre-e-Faisal, Karachi, not later than 48 hours before the meeting duly signed
and stamped and witnessed by two persons with their signature, name, address and CNIC number
given on the form.

4, Inthe case of individuals attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy Form.

5. In the case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney and

attested copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted alongwith proxy Form.
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